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The translation into Chinese language of this annual report is for reference only.
In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRRE

Financial Results and Business Review

| would like to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021. During the year, the Group recorded a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$323.0 million
(2020: HK$482.0 million) and a loss attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$777.6 million (2020: HK$460.1 million). The loss was mainly due to the
valuation losses on investment properties of HK$1,809.2 million
(2020: HK$1,314.1 million) which outweigh the profit from operations. The
valuation losses will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash
flows of the Group. Details of the financial results and business performance and

development are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 57 to 73.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.08 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$0.10 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share during the year
(2020: HK$0.21 per share), the total distribution will be HK$0.18 per share
for the year (2020: HK$0.31 per share).

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on

Thursday, 9 September 2021.

Acknowledgement
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Properties

Y

iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 458-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops, carparking spaces and a petrol-

filling station. The centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERWE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises responsibilities to its shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current risk
management and internal control systems and the close supervision of the
management, the Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation
in their capacity as Directors is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from
taking out insurance may not outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is,
subject to the provisions of the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company. In view of the above, the Board considers that the Directors’

exposure to risk is manageable.
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERRE

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. To avoid concentration of power and authority in any one
individual, day-to-day management of the Company’s business is shared by
Executive Directors whilst formulation of objectives and strategic decisions
are collectively made by the Board. In addition, the Board comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors with differing expertise/calibre who can
provide a “check and balance” effect on the management through their high
attendance at board meetings and therefore ensuring a balance of power.
Given consideration to the aforesaid, the Board of Directors is of the view
that the current structure does not have any adverse effect on the Company
and believes that this structure enables the Group to make and implement

decisions promptly and efficiently.

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed by
band in the annual report. To ensure they are remunerated at a reasonable
but not excessive rate, none of them is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management based on a number of factors set out in the Company’s
remuneration policy). The Directors consider that the non-disclosure does
not pose any negative impact on the Company. On the contrary, the
disclosure of the remuneration details of the senior management may cause
undue comparison among staff members, and would unnecessarily provide
highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other third
parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision C.2.5: Issuer should have an internal
audit function and review the need for one in case of
its absence annually

At present, the Company does not have an internal audit function. The Board
reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit function in March 2021
and considered that there was no such an immediate need after taking into
account the Group’s current circumstances, such as the focused nature and
geographical spread of business, the relatively simple operating structure
and small size of the Group and the close involvement and supervision
of the management in daily operation, which could provide sufficient risk
management and internal control for the Group. Despite it, the Board has
taken initiatives to promote the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by creating a control environment
across the Group (such as building up a corporate culture based on
sound business ethics and accountability through the implementation of
“whistle-blowing” arrangements and procedure manuals with defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines) and putting control activities in place (such
as conducting group-wide risk assessment exercise biannually). In addition,
where the external auditor of the Company considers any internal controls
that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements, it will report to the
audit committee any significant deficiencies in internal control identified

during the audit.

In view of the above considerations and the potential cost to be involved, the
Board is of the opinion that it is not cost effective to set up and maintain an
internal audit function and that the existing control mechanism could justify
its absence for the time being. Nonetheless, the Board will review the need

for an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the Deputy Chairman.
Since the company secretary is located in the same office as the Deputy
Chairman and they work closely on a day-to-day basis, direct reporting
to the Deputy Chairman can provide for a prompt and timely response to
issues which require immediate attention. On the other hand, the Chairman
keeps having ongoing discussion and dialogue with the Deputy Chairman
on business affairs, in particular corporate governance and financial issues,
which enables him to fully understand the operation of the Company and
manage it in an effective manner. Taking into account of the above, the

Board considers that the current reporting line is apposite to the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2021

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

Mr Wong Yiu Tak

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family together own businesses outside the Group.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to the shareholders of the Company in respect of
the Group’s performance. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Group, which include formulation of objectives,
overall strategies and business plans; and overseeing the financial and
management performance, corporate governance, environmental, social and
governance issues, risk management and internal control systems of the

Group.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the Group.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31 March 2021 on a going concern basis, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and, other than the changes in
accounting policies which are first effective for the year under review as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial
year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are

reasonable.
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Board of Directors continued)

In addition, the Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping
proper records which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company
about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is

set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 83.

With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the Board
has established three committees, namely the remuneration committee,
the nomination committee and the audit committee. Independent Non-
executive Directors ("INEDs") are invited to serve on these Board committees
given the benefits they can bring to the Company. To assist the committees
in discharging their roles adequately, each committee is provided with a
committee policy, setting out guidelines for its members to follow in the
process of decision-making. Duties and authorities of these committees are
also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep the Board fully
informed of their works and findings, these committees are required to report

back to the Board.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board and
report to the Board from time to time. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the operation of the Board and the Group’s development. Given the close
collaboration between the Board and the management, the duties, power
and functions of the Board and the management are clearly laid down and

defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.
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Directors’ Attendance and Training

To ensure timely and adequate attention to and due discussion on the
Group’s affairs, the Directors had full attendance at the board meetings
(total: six), board committee meetings and annual general meeting held

during the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Given the need for the Directors to equip themselves with necessary
knowledge and skills to perform their roles, the Company places an
emphasis on Directors’ training. During the year under review, all Directors
were furnished with memoranda/circulars at intervals so as to refresh their
knowledge relating to Directors’ duties and legal and regulatory obligations.
To keep the Directors abreast of the latest developments regarding
regulatory and legal requirements, the company secretary also provided
updates directly or through other professionals to the Board as and when
necessary. During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, not only did
the Company organise in-house training courses in relation to corporate
governance, rules and regulations, and Directors’ duties and responsibilities
for its Directors at the Company’s expense, it also provided them with
e-learning materials as composed by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. For the purpose of ensuring suitable training is received by the
Directors, the Board conducted a review thereon and is satisfied with the
training received by the Directors for the financial year ended 31 March
2021. Other than the foregoing, the Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant external training sessions, seminars, forums and conferences on
their own with all related expenses reimbursable by the Company, subject to

the Company’s policy.
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Directors’ Attendance and Training (continued)

Individual attendance of the Directors at annual general meeting, board

EEHEESERICERE @
SEENAEEHERERAEAS EEEE

@

meetings, board committee meetings and training during the year under = TEE N E TR =k FoEREA N
ings, board i i d training during th d ® EFgETZaEggRIMEIIZRENT
review is set out below:
Remuneration Nomination Audit Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Mestings' Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Training’
gzeey FHZE8EE REZEG83 BNZEEER RREEXE A
Covering
corporate
governance- Covering
Directors related matters other matters
PREEER
Bz REZEE PREMZE
Executive Directors
HiEE
Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)
Pl B /Y - /Y - & AC
Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Pty &8 8888 - && - & AC
Cheong Keng Hooi
He NP O VO - - S AC
Cheong Sim Lam
i N R Y - - S AC
Cheong Chong Ling
& 88 8888 - . . 8 o
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHEE
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
P &8 8888 8&& && 88&88 & B.C
Wong Yiu Tak
" B LHHL GO GO W& & AC
Tse Pang Yuen
e B BB BOE & (WS & AC
Total number of meetings
e ’ ’ ‘ 1 :
& . Attended in person & makE
& : Attended by phone/video call & ¢ MUERE/BEHIALE
— : Not applicable — ¢ NEA
Note 1: During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, six board meetings, of which H1: RBEZT—F=A=1+—HLYVERFE  AA7)
four were regular board meetings, were held. KA EEe R (EThmiasEseH) -
Note 2: The form in which the Directors received training includes: 0 BEERETEIINFEREE
A:  Attending courses/seminars/conferences A HERE We fee
B: Reading materials B: BEER
C: Receiving briefings from company secretary/other executives/ C: HRAIME HMITHRAR, BHEATERER
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Independent Non-executive Directors

INEDs are appointed for the period commencing from the conclusion of one
annual general meeting to the conclusion of the following annual general
meeting. According to the Company’s Articles of Association, they are
required to retire by rotation, but remain eligible for re-election, at least once

every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each INED about his
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
each of them to be independent. One of the INEDs possesses appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and senior management of suitable calibre by remunerating them
at a competitive level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established
a remuneration committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no
Director or his/her associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating

to his/her own remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three INEDs. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Wong Yiu Tak and
Mr Tse Pang Yuen. The main duties of the remuneration committee are to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the terms of reference
of the committee; to assist the Company in formulating remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management; to review
and approve the management’s remuneration proposals; to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management; to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of the INEDs; to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited (“HKEX").

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee
on the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi
Hong whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration
committee alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the review of INEDs’
remuneration annually. For all other staff, it is the Executive Directors who
fix their remuneration packages on the recommendations of their respective

department heads on an annual basis.

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration committee (Continued)

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 24 to the financial
statements on page 147, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the remuneration committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and the terms of reference of the committee;
considered and fixed the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management; and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the INEDs. Number of meetings held by the committee
during the year under review and individual attendance of the remuneration

committee members thereat are set out in the table on page 12.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three INEDs. They are Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman),
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Wong Yiu Tak and
Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess
the independence of INEDs; to assess the mix in terms of gender, age
and qualifications required on the Board; to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the chief executive, and on setting measurable objectives
for implementing the Board diversity policy. Details of the nomination
committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The
said terms of reference are published on the websites of the Company and
the HKEX.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination committee (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the nomination committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy,
the terms of reference of the committee, the Board diversity policy, the need
of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity policy
and the necessary mix required on the Board; put forward recommendations
to the Board on the structure, size and composition of the Board; assessed
the independence of the INEDs; and made recommendations to the Board
on the re-appointments of the INEDs and Directors who were subject to
retirement by rotation. Number of meetings held by the committee during the
year under review and individual attendance of the nomination committee

members thereat are set out in the table on page 12.

To ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company, a nomination policy
which delineates the procedures and criteria for nomination of Directors has
been laid down. Under the policy, all Directors, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall retire
at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual
vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next annual
general meeting) and Directors so appointed are eligible for re-election. The

appointment term of the Directors is determined by the Board.

Before making recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of a Director, the nomination committee shall according to the
nomination policy consider the present and future needs of the Company
and the new challenges/risks it may encounter, and thereafter determine the
necessary attributes/competencies required for the Director. In considering
the suitability of an individual to become a Director or a Director to be re-
appointed, the nomination committee shall consider whether the person
concerned possesses the specific qualities required by the Company, his/
her personal profile and whether he/she meets the basic criteria as required
under applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong, such as being able
to demonstrate a standard of competence and having the character,
experience and integrity commensurate with his/her position as a Director.
For the appointment/re-appointment of an INED, the nomination committee
shall also take into account the independence guidelines laid down in the

Listing Rules.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination committee (Continued)

To ensure there is a balanced composition of the Board, the nomination
committee needs to consider not only one’s attributes/competencies, but
also his/her value to the Company. Board diversity is a key consideration
in Board selection process which the nomination committee shall give
consideration to. For the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also
focuses on age and professional experience. Selection of female candidates
or candidates of a particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is,
in part, dependent on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills,
knowledge and experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and
contribution likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes
that, with the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to
the needs and expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and

tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to

the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or the policy itself.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

As regards nomination procedures, the relevant details are set out
in the nomination policy, which requires the Board (i) on receipt of
recommendations from the nomination committee forms an opinion as to
whether one shall be appointed/re-appointed with particular regards paid
to the matters stipulated in Code Provision A.5.5 of the CG Code and
(i) publishes an announcement as per the Listing Rules after the same
has been approved. If the appointment/re-appointment is subject to
shareholders’ approval, disclosure as required under the Listing Rules has to

be made accordingly.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; to review financial information of the Group; to review
arrangements employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise
concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are
in place for fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of

reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEXx.

The audit committee currently comprises three INEDs. They are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Wong Yiu Tak and Mr Tse Pang

Yuen.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the audit committee made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the external
auditor; considered and approved the terms of engagement of the external
auditor for provision of profits tax services; fixed the external auditor’'s
remuneration; reviewed the half-year and annual financial statements of
the Group, including integrity and significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein, before submission to the Board for approval; discussed
with the external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and determined
the scope and extent of the interim review before commencement; and
considered and made recommendations to the Board on the arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about improprieties, the audit policy, the

terms of reference of the committee and the risk management policy.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit committee (Continued)

The audit committee during the year under review also reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by monitoring the risk change during the year, assessing the adequacy of the
mitigating strategies used and the impact of the identified risks on the Group
before making recommendations to the Board. It also evaluated the need
of setting up an internal audit function by considering the current internal
control mechanism and the pros and cons of doing so. Number of meetings
held by the committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2021 and
individual attendance of the audit committee members thereat are set out in

the table on page 12.

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2021, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board reviewed the general code of
conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous
professional development received by Directors and senior management;
and reviewed corporate governance policies and practices including
those relating to compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two

board meetings is set out in the table on page 12.

EEEETHNZES
EREEE @)
%$¢ﬁ*%ﬁ§§ﬁﬁﬁm%$@%ﬁﬁﬁ

BERFNMEREL - STETRAHZE
ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ%%iﬁ&E%%Zﬂ YA EEW
¢ AR N o L R T RO B B 4 A
ﬂ& EREEQMABRINE G NI
ﬂﬁW%%VﬁuZﬂ%%ﬂﬁ&iﬁwm\%
c BREEENEE-_T-—4=A=+—H
¢Wﬁ¢ﬁ%ﬁg% REREEEBRKELE
B ARENE12EMFIRR -

,IEEH

E e eE TRl <FAHEED .31 1RSI 2 B
5o

rEHE=E— ":*EEHE+*E¢WﬁEFW%
=1 LR §$@@%¢ HimRBEeEE
BH - EREEH L §$A$ﬁél&§$@

#Fh EREEREEERASE
BEERR RBLEERIER
FERREERHRE  AAF
EEARARENIEZHE
ZMANEEEGH L

B BRER
ErhE TR R
EITRE - BE
BRE12EH7

%ﬂﬁgﬁhm
ﬁ%ém
DW }H{k

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

19



20

Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERRE

Auditor’s Remuneration
An analysis of remuneration paid by the Company to its auditor, KPMG, in
respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group during the

financial year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

R ELEN BN &=

ARBEZEE — EHASFMEBIREE
TR F-A=tHUIMBEFERAEER
W2 BB ISR BRI R BETT

HK$’000

BEET T

Audit services ZER 1,321
Non-audit services FERZERTS

. Tax services o TEARIE 96

o Interim review o FhHEAZERE 374

470

1,791

Risk Management and Internal Control
Responsibility
The Board has an overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and

internal control systems.

To this end, the Board, assisted by the audit committee, oversees the
foregoing systems on an ongoing basis by evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social
and governance-related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk management

and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

Although the said systems are complemented by relevant procedure and
measures for the purpose of safeguarding the interests of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole, they are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Key features and process

As risk management is the responsibility of everyone within the Group
and something more than a formality, it is integrated into the day-to-day
operation and carried out at all levels under the stewardship of the Board.
In order to create a control environment across the Group to support the
risk management and internal control systems, the Company is committed
to building up a corporate culture based on business ethics, control
responsibility and risk awareness. To accomplish this, the Company has
adopted a general code of conduct to govern the integrity and ethical
behaviour of employees in business practices. Procedure manuals
delineating reporting lines and areas of responsibility of each department/
operating unit are laid down and are under review from time to time. In
addition, arrangements for employees to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in any matters in relation to the Group or any
non-compliance with the Company’s policies are in place. All policies,
procedure and guidelines with defined limits of delegated authority are put in

writing so as to enhance effective segregation of duties and controls.

On top of fostering a risk management culture, the Board adopts a bottom-
up approach to identify the Group’s operational risks. Instead of setting
up a separate department charged with the risk-related issues, it gets
all departments/operating units involved. Under the current systems, all
department/unit heads are required to establish risk factors specific to their
responsible areas, determine impact as well as likelihood of identified risks
in accordance with the risk appetite set by the Board and develop mitigating
strategies. They shall maintain a risk register containing the said information
and update it on a regular basis. In order to provide the Board and the audit
committee with an overview of the Group’s operational risks and how they
are managed, the management scrutinises, filters, amends and compiles
relevant information, together with findings of the strategic risk identification
performed by the Executive Directors on behalf of the Board, as a composite
risk report to the Board/the audit committee for review and endorsement
every 6 months unless the circumstances are exceptional which require
immediate attention for discussion. The external auditor also has access to
the risk registers and composite risk reports. During the financial year ended
31 March 2021, such risk assessment exercise was done on a half-yearly

basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Key features and process (Continued)

In the absence of an internal audit function (reasons for its absence are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 5 to 8),
the Board has appointed a qualified accountant, who is also the accounting
manager of the Group, to carry out sample testing on procedure compliance
and risk-related issues in respect of all departments/operating units. Test
results and findings are reported to the audit committee on an annual basis.
Heads of the departments/operating units which may have a significant
financial implication on the Group’s revenue are required to make an annual
representation to the audit committee confirming that all potential risks in
relation to their scope of work are properly dealt with. The management will
then review the situation and provide the Board/the audit committee with an
annual confirmation on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems.

Being part of the internal control process, the Group has maintained a
comprehensive accounting system for ensuring complete and accurate
financial information. Annual budgets as regards rental income and operating
expenses of iISQUARE, the Group’s main source of revenue, are prepared
for effective allocation and utilisation of resources. As regards outgoings,
the Group has established procedure for approval and control of operating
expenditures whilst the capital ones are subject to management approval
prior to commitment. Other control measures, including provision of monthly
management accounts to Directors and preparation of variance analyses,

help identify deficiencies and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Handling of inside information

Concerning inside information, the Company has implemented various
policies to govern how it shall be handled. Policy on disclosure of inside
information sets out the manner in which inside information is escalated
and disseminated whereas the risk management policy provides ways to
deal with risks which may constitute inside information. Besides, the general
code of conduct adopted by the Group prohibits inappropriate use of
confidential or inside information. All employees are required to undertake
their adherence to the said code and report any non-compliance with it to

the management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Handling of inside information (continued)

For the purpose of complying with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to inside information, the Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code. Relevant procedure for guarding against mishandling of inside
information includes pre-clearance on dealing in the Company’s securities
by designated Directors and notification of black-out period to Directors. In
order to remind Directors and employees of their obligations in securities

transaction, they are provided with memoranda at intervals.

Review of effectiveness

Although the management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems,
the Board and the audit committee oversee the process. In March 2021,
the Board, with the confirmation from the management certifying that the
aforesaid systems were functioning effectively and the assistance of the
audit committee, conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems for the financial year ended
31 March 2021. Such review is conducted annually and covered all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. Based on
the review result, the Board considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal control and financial reporting functions were adequate and that the
risk management and internal control systems were effective and apposite
to the Group though no in-house or outsourced internal audit function has
been set up as required by the CG Code. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which should be brought to the attention of the

shareholders of the Company.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties

As with any business, the Group faces risks and uncertainties on a daily
basis. In determining the principal risks posed to the Group, the Board takes
into account the overall severity level (based on the impact and likelihood
matrix) of the risks set out in the composite risk reports and their changes
during the financial year. It also examines their nature and impact on the
Group and evaluates the effectiveness and suitability of the mitigating
strategies as applied by taking into consideration the actual operation and

performance of the Group.

From the Group’s overall perspective, the following are identified as principal
risks currently encountered by the Group. That said, they are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive. There may be other risks which may not
be material now but could turn out to be such in the future. Although the
principal risks may not change significantly from year to year, their magnitude

and importance to the Group can and do vary.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Risk pertaining to Leasing

Key controls and mitigations:

With the increase in new supply of retail premises in Tsim Sha Tsui area in
recent years, the rental level and occupancy rate of iISQUARE have already
come under downward pressure. Following the unprecedented blow
brought by COVID-19 pandemic to tourism and travel industries as well as
retail and catering sectors, business of iISQUARE tenants was inevitably
seriously disrupted. Despite the relief programmes implemented by the
Hong Kong government and promotional activities initiated by individual
business operators, there was still a surge in number of vacant shops in
Hong Kong during the year under review in the wake of waves of business
closures. Coupled with the increasing use of online channels for retail
purchases as well as demand for takeaway/food delivery services as a result
of the societal needs for stay-at-home and social distancing, and the more
conservative spending behaviour in view of the rise in local unemployment
and underemployment rates, difficulties encountered by iSQUARE tenants
continued.

In spite of the availability of COVID-19 vaccines in Hong Kong and the roll-
out of inoculation programmes in some countries, there is still a long way
to herd immunity which necessitates return to normality given vaccine
hesitancy, uncertain efficacy and uneven distribution across the world of
vaccines, and the potential rebound and mutation of COVID-19. The hard
time for tourism and travel industries as well as retail and catering sectors is
not yet over. Unlike malls around residential areas which can partly rely on
local consumption, the negative impact posed onto iISQUARE, a shopping
mall located in a tourist hub, is considerable. Amid the austere business
environment, iISQUARE facing downward pressure on rental level and
occupancy rate persisted during the year under review.

In view of the prevailing situation, business outlook of tenants remains tough

and risk of tenants’ default may continue. Risk level therefore remained
broadly the same in the reporting year.

HBERANER

To offer short-term relief to tenants so as to
alleviate their business pressure whereby
a sustainable business partnership can be
maintained

To focus marketing efforts on drawing more
people to and encouraging consumption at
iISQUARE

To conduct direct engagement with
tenants and closely monitor their financial
performance and payment record

To adopt a more proactive approach to
seeking potential tenants and managing
tenancy expires and vacancies
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Risk pertaining to Ongoing Pandemic
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Key controls and mitigations:

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has dealt a heavy blow to both global
and local economies with hardest hit on travel and tourism industries. Both
inbound and outbound tourism in Hong Kong almost ground to a halt in the
year under review due to a wide array of travel restrictions across the world.
Local consumption activities were also severely disrupted as consumer
sentiments swayed according to the development of local epidemic situation
and the scale of social distancing measures adopted by the Hong Kong
government. iISQUARE, as with other shopping malls generally, experienced
a difficult time. Given that iISQUARE is the Group’s main business operation,
the adverse effect on the Group is significant. Despite the increasing number
of people having administered COVID-19 vaccines, the evolvement of the
pandemic is still full of precariousness and the market prospect remains
uncertain. In view of the long way for normal economic activities to resume
and the extent of the negative impact on the Group’s business and financial
performance, there was no apparent change to the risk exposure in the year
in question.

SRR ERRNFEFHENER

To stay alert to the latest development
in relation to COVID-19 so that swift
adjustment to corporate strategies and
business activities can be made

To maintain a solid financial position with
strong cash flow and a low gearing level so as
to cater for unforeseen circumstances
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Risk pertaining to Economic and Political Outlook
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Key controls and mitigations:

Since the Group’s operations are mainly based in Hong Kong, any
unfavourable change in local political and economic climate could disrupt
its overall business. Although the social stability in Hong Kong has in
general been restored, there is no clear sign of economic revival given the
unpredictability in the unfolding of COVID-19 pandemic. In the absence of any
vivid favourable factors, there was no great change in the Group’s financial
performance in the year under review. Risk level therefore remained broadly
the same.
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To closely monitor the operating environment
so as to enable prompt adjustment to
corporate strategies and business activities

To engage a prudent and sound financial
management with a view to ensuring
business resilience and coping with
unexpected changes
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

Risk pertaining to Investment Properties
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Key controls and mitigations:

Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Group’s
investment properties (“IPs”) are stated at fair values in the consolidated
statement of financial position whilst changes thereof are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Given the relatively heavy weighting of the IPs in the Group’s property
portfolio, any material change in the valuation of the IPs can seriously
affect the Group’s profit/loss for the year. As one of the key drivers of the
valuation of the IPs is rental income which can be volatile and there has been
downward pressure on rental level and occupancy rate of ISQUARE during
the year under review as a result of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic,
further valuation losses are largely expected. Notwithstanding the valuation
change, fair value gains/losses will not affect the Group’s cash flow.

Due to the current financial reporting requirements, valuation changes have
influenced and will continue to influence the Group’s profit/loss.

R BRI

Ensuring stable revenue streams is a practicable
way to mitigate the adverse impact caused by
valuation losses during economic downturns.
Measures taken by the Group include the
following:

e To build up a more diversified tenant mix
with the aim of maintaining a sustainable
tenant portfolio

e To launch creative and popular promotions
so as to increase exposure, thereby
stimulate consumer spending and add value
to the IPs

e To stay alert to market changes and tenant
needs for retaining competitiveness and
countering peer competition

e To preserve quality of the IPs by carrying out
maintenance and enhancement works
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In addition to monitoring the impact of the principal risks that the Group is
now facing by adjusting its corporate strategies and mitigating measures,
the management will keep observing if there is any emerging risk which may
affect the Group significantly on a regular basis.
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Shareholders’ Relations

To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEX is posted on the

Company’s website (http://ttll.etnet.com.hk/eng/ca_calendar.php) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2021, there were no changes made to the

Articles of Association of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

Shareholders are also provided with means by which their enquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (ttllicosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
o The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. An

AGM is usually held in September.

o If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM

o Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they represent at least:

(@ 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who

have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the

request relates; or

(b) 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at

the AGM to which the request relates.

o The request must:

(@ be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the proposed resolution;

(©) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the

AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

notice of the AGM is despatched.

o The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included

in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the
Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

(b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

() may consist of several documents in like form;

(d) must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them may themselves call a GM, and the meeting
so convened must be called for a date not more than 3 months after
the date on which the Directors become subject to the requirement
to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any reasonable expenses
incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the GM by reason of the
failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (“Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each such GM
will be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

() 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(b) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement

concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right

to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@) be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the

Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(b) identify the statement to be circulated;

(©) be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(ii) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(b) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
having received in time for the Company to send a copy of the
statement together with the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s)
concerned has/have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the circulation purpose within the time frame
(as the case may be), the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to

Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Dividend policy

With the aim of providing Shareholders with a sustainable dividend stream,
the Company has adopted a dividend policy which lays down guidelines
to the Board in determining dividends. It clearly sets out considerations the
Board shall take into account when proposing dividends. These factors
include, inter alia, financial performance, working capital requirements
and future development plans of the Company and general economic
environment. Subject to all applicable laws, rules, regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company, the Board may declare dividends provided
that there is a profit (excluding valuation changes) for the year/period
concerned. To give flexibility to the Board in making payout decisions after
having regard to the circumstances then pertaining, the dividend policy does
not specify any payout ratio, the form dividends shall take or frequency they
shall be declared. This policy will be subject to review by the Board from time

to time and be updated as and when considered necessary.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

TRESEEHRE

Approach and Strategy

Being a responsible enterprise, the Company is not only concerned with
its financial growth but also its non-financial performance. The Company
recognises that the manner in which it conducts business will impact on
the environment and society. As such, the management strives to make a
positive contribution to the sustainability development of the environment
and society by integrating the socially responsible practices in its daily
operation. The Executive Directors are responsible for driving environmental
and social responsibilities initiatives and reviewing their practices for
performance improvement whilst the Board assumes an overall responsibility

for the Company’s environmental and social strategy and reporting.

Reporting Scope

This Corporate Social Responsibility Report provides a review on the Group’s
performance of its environmental and social responsibilities for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021. As iISQUARE is the Group’s main business

operation, its performance is included herein unless otherwise specified.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Its content is determined through a process which involves
identification of stakeholders and relevant issues in relation to environmental
and social responsibilities and prioritisation of the issues to be reported
after taking into account the stakeholders’ expectations and the Group’s
unique business nature. In this report, only the environmental and social
responsibilities initiatives and performance that are material and/or relevant
to the Group and its stakeholders are outlined. During the financial year
ended 31 March 2021, the Company complied with all the “comply or

explain” provisions, where applicable, set out in the Guide.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report ¥t &85EHkE

Stakeholders’ Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

To truly understand the views and expectations of the stakeholders on
sustainability development, the Company keeps ongoing communication
with its key stakeholders. During the year under review, the Company
engaged its shareholders, employees, business partners and tenants
through face-to-face discussions and/or questionnaires. Reporting issues
are identified according to the impact of the issues on the Group’s business
and stakeholders as evaluated by the management and the stakeholders

respectively.

Environmental Issues

Policy

Since the management acknowledges that the Group shall take into account
the impact of its business operation on the environment while achieving
financial growth, the Group during the reporting year reviewed and revised

its environmental policy with a focus on the following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements
2. setting up long-term carbon emission reduction targets

3. enhancing behavioural change among staff through internal

communication and awareness activities
4. where practicable,

o incorporating environmental considerations into contracting

decisions and tenant selection

o adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation
° disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way
o reducing waste, and reusing and recycling materials

5. communicating the Group’s policy to the management company of
iISQUARE and encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns

into its operation process
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Environmental Issues (continued) IRIBEE @)
Initiatives it

In order to support environmental conservation, the Group, in addition to its BEIRBEREELEYE  KEBKB T — AL
practice in collecting used/useless lai see packets for recycling, participated WEFER /" ERANTMEE  RAEE W%ﬁi@%
in the lai see packets reuse programme organised by Greeners Action during PBRERERESAET —ARESNFERAZRH
the year under review by sponsoring it for the event and providing ISQUARE as FRAREI TRV R AR R EAFE -

one of the collection points.

Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an Bl AREEEEFRAYISEaEEN IR E
ors

environmentally responsible manner, for instance: WAERN - Flan

. using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and o (e Eﬁ7ﬁ€é‘f$“§§ s QREE RV oK AL TR 5
photo-sensor water taps X FEKH

. purchasing white paper with FSC certification only o REBEEFSCREMBR

. disposing of used paper which is good for recycling through a paper o REEAR B A R ERIEE A Bl 2 2 B4R

recycling company

. employing multi-zone lighting controls o AN ERAFIEHIRL
. returning used toners/cartridges to suppliers for recycling . RO ERNRNE2ETFHEREDK
2 H

. using environmentally friendly paper for printing corporate ° 1 FIRRAGRENE A BB FRE R

communication to shareholders

S0

. switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not o Bt IEE AR - BEME)

A

in use
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Initiatives (Continued)

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, iISQUARE, being the Group’s main business operation, also takes
proactive steps towards this end. During the year under review, iISQUARE
worked with a glass management contractor of the Environmental Protection
Department in promoting glass bottle recycling by setting up a few collection

points thereat.

In addition to the aforesaid, iISQUARE keeps employing those green

measures it has been using, such as:

o use of ultra low sulphur diesel for generator
. diversion of used water from cooling towers for flushing
o reviewing and, where possible, shortening daily operating hours of

escalators, lifts, lights and air-conditioning at areas accessible by

shoppers

° encouraging tenants to follow guidelines in relation to environmentally
friendly practices and providing them with hints thereon through

iISQUARE publications

o recycling waste paper, plastics and metals via the participation of
the “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial

Waste” as organised by the Environmental Protection Department

o equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Initiatives (Continued)

With the implementation of various energy saving initiatives during the year
under review, including those adopted as a result of the substantial drop
in number of shoppers brought by COVID-19 pandemic, the amount of
electricity purchased by iISQUARE from power company and the indirect
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions generated therefrom reduced by
approximately 30.95% and 60.08% respectively (details of which are shown
in the table below) when compared with the baseline figures of the financial

year ended 31 March 2015, the first year energy numbers were collected.

RERNAFEMEITHNZEGLER  2154F
201978 M Jm B8 AT 51 A B = AR i ZRER
& BEBRESUHENAREENE ﬁ&l&tﬁﬁ?
B RAERENEREE T —hF=A
£+—E¢HIE&¢J§(EME%f@“&;‘ﬁ%{?ﬁz%
F)MEEH TR B A 4930.95% K% 60.08%
(FBERTR) -

Year ended 31 March
BZE3ASHLEE

2021 2020 2015

(Baseline)

Issues =15 (H%E)

Amount of purchased electricity (MWh) BEECKE/E) 9,352.44  12,133.39  13,544.42
Indirect GHG emissions from purchased ~E4EMEENE I MEENEIELE

electricity (tonnes of CO, equivalent) REHWE(RE_StiREE) 3,460.40 6,066.69 8,668.43

To further reduce electricity consumption, iISQUARE will continue its energy
saving programme on lighting system through identification of locations

where more energy efficient lights could be installed.

In the coming financial year, ISQUARE will also keep exploring new green

measures and extend the recycling coverage to cartons.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

RE-FRIREE  BRESREBSHAE
UEBEZET LB R AEERES ARBRRE
BERTEI -

RT—MBEE  BRESTEEERRMNOR
RN - WRALRBEEEERMS -



Corporate Social Responsibility Report ¥t &85EHkE

Environmental Issues (continued)

Performance

Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
investment holding, and iISQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the
total amount of direct GHG emissions generated by them is relatively small.
The largest contributor to the carbon footprint of the Group (including
iISQUARE) in the year under review was the indirect GHG emissions from

electricity consumption.

1. GHG emissions' (CO, equivalent)

MR ARETENEMERERERIREZER - ME
BRESUEIEUNRBE AN EFFEENERAE
REBAFNERSD - RAFE  AREMmMES
MR ERBHREAEE(REREEES) X
RH)EZ KR -

1. BEREHER (ZE(hREs)

Year ended 31 March

HESANBALEE

Indicators gE 2021 2020
Direct sources (Scope 1)’ BEFOR(#E1)
e Diesel’ (tonnes) o LEH2(ANE) 0.68 0.59
Indirect sources (Scope 2)' AR (FE2)
e Electricity’ (tonnes) NN ) 3,482.07 6,098.96
Other indirect sources (Scope 3)' BT (FE3)
e Electricity used for processing fresh water’ o EEAKMEANEN

(tonnes) (ZAM8) 13.11 20.60
e Electricity used for processing sewage’ o EESKWMERANEN

(tonnes) (AWE) 6.38 9.52
e Paper waste disposed at landfills’ (tonnes) o EEPEHEBMFER (ANE) 0.44 0.95
Total GHG emissions (Scopes 1, 2 and 3) BERBEESNE (8ET - 2K&3)

(tonnes) (AWE) 3,502.68 6,130.62

GHG emissions avoided e NREREIER
e Recycling of paper’ (tonnes) o HEIREIU (AME) (159.84) (199.15)
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Energy consumption

Corporate Social Responsibility Report ¥ &5EHRE

IRIBEEAE @
= #)
0. BN

Year ended 31 March

BZESANALEFE

Indicators i 2021 2020
Direct energy consumption EEEEREFE
e Diesel’ (MWh) o SOM KL/ NER) 2.85 2.49
Indirect energy consumption [ET#ERE IR E FE
e Electricity’ (MWh) o BN OKENE) 9,411.01 12,197.93
Total energy consumption (MWh) BEIRBFERE OKE/ N ) 9,413.86 12,200.42
Total energy consumption per m? of FEHREmMEREZ ERERESE

floor area (MWh/m?) (JkF /N SEF52K) 0.18 0.23

. 10
Paper consumption

3. MFEEE"

Year ended 31 March

BZE3AHLEE
Indicators it 2021 2020
e Office paper (kg) o MAEALKAT) 552.38 538.65
e Paper for printing corporate o EIRINBBAMAEK(AT)
communication (kg) 1,359.19 1,382.35
Total paper consumption (kg) BEREEE(RT) 1,911.57 1,921.00
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Environmental Issues (continued)

IRIEEAE @

Performance (Continued) FIA \)
4. Water consumption'’ 4. mFke"
Year ended 31 March
BZEZ3HA31HILEE
Indicators BE 2021 2020
Total water consumption (m3) BAEKE (ST FK) 31,418.00 48,565.00
Total water consumption per m? of BYEFREEEBE . AKESE
floor area (m®/m?) WP VE TP ) 0.59 0.92

As the Group is situated at iISQUARE where water is provided by the
Water Supplies Department, the Group (including iISQUARE) does not

encounter any problem in sourcing water for daily operation.

R AEEREELNEERES  MERE
B2 BOKTIREKHE - WARE (BREE
BRES)E R BEF LA S EKREER

5.  Waste management

ERIFERE -

5. REWMER

Year ended 31 March
HZE3ASIHILEE

Indicators BE 2021 2020
Non-hazardous waste disposed at landfills* EERBEBNESEEY”
Total non-hazardous waste disposed at BEEREERNEZSEEYRE

landfills (tonnes) (AWE) 1,256.84 1,695.50
Total non-hazardous waste disposed at FYpAEHEEZEZEERNHEERE

landfills per m? of floor area (tonnes/m?) EmEREEYAE (AW FITK) 0.02 0.03
Waste collected for recycling BER BT
s Paper” kg) o HWE(AF) 33,300.00  41,490.00
e Plastics” (kg) o MB“(RAF) 196.00 189.00
e Metals” (kg) e 2B (A 149.00 151.00
e Toners/cartridges'® (pieces) o WA /BE"(H) 17 10
e Glass” (kg) o WHE'(AF) 633.00 NA 73 A
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions
and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department and the Environmental Protection Department (“Hong
Kong GHG Guidelines”). All numbers in this table, where applicable, are
rounded to two decimal places.

Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned
and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation
of electricity which the Group (including iISQUARE but excluding tenants
which purchased power through their own metered supply) purchased from

power company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that () come from paper waste
disposed by the Group (excluding iISQUARE) at landfills; and (i) are relevant
to the activities of the Group and/or iISQUARE and are generated due to
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage, excluding those
operated from tenants’ own metered supply, by government departments.

The breakdown of Scope 1 GHG emissions in respect of the financial year
ended 31 March 2021 is as follows: carbon dioxide (0.67 tonnes of CO,
equivalent), methane (0.0001 tonnes of CO, equivalent) and nitrous oxide
(0.0006 tonnes of CO, equivalent).

Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the
emergency generator of iISQUARE, and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potentials set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased by
the Group (including iISQUARE) for own consumption as shown in electricity
bills and the latest emission factor as published by the relevant electricity
provider.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group (including ISQUARE) as shown in water bills, the latest available unit
electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department and the territory-wide default value of purchased electricity.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group (including ISQUARE) as shown in water bills and the default emission
factor (which is determined according to the purpose of water used, the latest
available unit electricity consumption of processing sewage as published
by the Drainage Services Department and the territory-wide default value of
purchased electricity).
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Performance (Continued)

Note 6: Emissions are calculated based on the amount of office paper consumed
by the Group (excluding paper generated by the management company
engaged to run iISQUARE (“MgtCo”) for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE)
net of office paper collected for recycling and the relevant emission factor set
out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Note 7:  Emissions avoided are calculated according to the amount of paper collected
for recycling (including paper generated within the Group, paper tendered by
external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE) and
the relevant emission factor provided in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Note 8:  Energy consumption is calculated based on the amount of diesel consumed
by the emergency generator at ISQUARE and the relevant conversion factor
set out in the “List of common conversion factors (Engineering conversion
factors)” as published by IOR Energy Pty Ltd.

Note 9:  Energy consumption is the amount of electricity purchased by the Group
(including ISQUARE) for own consumption as shown in electricity bills.

Note 10: Referring to paper generated by the Group only (excluding paper generated
by the MgtCo for any purpose in relation to ISQUARE).

Note 11: Being the amount of water used by the Group (including iISQUARE) as shown
in water bills.

Note 12: Being the estimated amount of general waste disposed through iISQUARE,
including those generated by the Group. Such amount is derived based on
the aggregate of the average daily amount of general waste for (i) weekdays
and (i) weekends/public holidays as collected and weighed by the cleaning
contractor of iISQUARE at different time slots multiplied by the number of
relevant days in a year.

Note 13: Including paper generated within the Group, paper tendered by external
parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE.

Note 14: Being plastics disposed through iSQUARE.
Note 15: Being metals disposed through iSQUARE.
Note 16: Being toners/cartridges used by the Group.

Note 17: Being glass disposed through iSQUARE. No such data is available for the
financial year ended 31 March 2020.

Due to the business nature, the Group (including iISQUARE) does not
generate a quantifiable amount of hazardous waste and disclosure of total

packaging material used for finished products is not applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the operating activities of the Group (including
iISQUARE) have no significant impact on the environment and natural

resources.

Compliance with environmental-related laws and
regulations

During the year under review, the Group (including iISQUARE) was not
aware of any non-compliance with any laws and regulations relating to the

environment that had a significant impact on it.
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Social Issues'®

Since the management of iISQUARE has been outsourced to the MgtCo
and there is no need for the Group to directly deal with employment-related
matters in respect of ISQUARE, discussion on areas relating to social issues
only covers the Group and does not include staff of the MgtCo employed for
general building and property management of iSQUARE.

Employment

As the Group’s success depends largely on the support of its employees’®,
the management places great emphasis on maintaining a quality workplace.
Building up a culture which advocates ethical and responsible business
practices has become essential. To this end, the Group has adopted a
general code of conduct (“Code”) which applies to both Directors and
employees and deals with areas of data privacy, copyright protection,
prevention of bribery, “whistle-blowing” and equal opportunities. According
to the Code, employees are required to observe the requirements of the Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability Discrimination Ordinance, the Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance and the Race Discrimination Ordinance and
their respective codes of practice. In addition, the Group has laid down an
employment policy, setting out its principles on recruitment and promotion,
such as equal opportunities and “selection on capability” basis. Procedures
and factors to be considered on review of the remuneration packages of the
senior management are delineated in the remuneration policy. Information in
respect of the Group’s remuneration review mechanism is mentioned in the
Corporate Governance Report headed “Remuneration committee” as set out
on pages 13 to 15. To be consistent with the principles of the employment
policy on motivating employees and providing equal opportunities,
performance appraisal is conducted annually. It is the basis for salary
adjustment, discretionary bonus and promotion.

Although policies on compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest
periods, and some other benefits and welfare are not put in writing, relevant
steps to govern their application and due observance have been developed
and implemented under the management of the Executive Directors of the
Company.

Note 18: Calculation bases for figures in relation to employee profile and training
are based on “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting
Guidance on Social KPIs” as composed by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. All relevant numbers, where applicable, are rounded to two
decimal places.

Note 19: In this Corporate Social Responsibility Report, “staff” and “employees”

exclude Directors of the Company and staff employed by the MgtCo for
general building and property management of iISQUARE.
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Social Issues (continued)
Employee profile and engagement

e EE
BETENK SN

: 34 (2020: 32)*
~ }2 Q All employees are full-time staff and based in Hong Kong
Workforce FHRES1A2RET - WREBTIIE
EE&
8 26 20.59% (2020: 12.50%)

(2020: 7) (2020: 25) (2020: 21.88%)

Aged below 35

2021 (0000: 65.62%) 2021 ST
Y Female PY Aged 35 - 55
7z 35-55 5%
Gender o Male Age group @ #ged above 55
4 Bl s &% 4 Bl 55 5 L

Turnover rate

BB

@ 0% oo
/\ Male
4w

by gender 0 o
MRS L 0 /0 (2020: 12%)

O 0/0 (2020: 0%)

Aged below 35

/‘i‘\ 35 U T

O 0/0 (2020: 50%)

AGE Aged 35 - 55
\./ 35-55 #% 0 0/0 (2020: 4.76%)
by age group
BERAHES Aged above 55 o
55 A E 0 /0 (2020: 0%)

* by headcount

BABGHE
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Social Issues (continued)

Employee profile and engagement (Continued)

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Given the importance of understanding its employees’ concerns on an
ongoing basis, the Group conducts employee satisfaction survey every
year by which it can solicit staff opinions about their work environment and
expectation. Survey result is shared by the management so as to identify
ways to make further improvement. The following table shows extract of the

survey result conducted by the Group in the reporting year.
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Social Issues (continued)
Employee profile and engagement (Continued)

e
* e

* *y

* .
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Employee engagement
BENS

Workforce-management relationship
REEEREZ

50% (2020: 80.65%)*
was happy with the
workforce-management
relationship

RREEMERY

2021

Absence rate

TREE R
0.86% (2020: 1.51%)

HEFE@
ETERNSE @)

Overall satisfaction

ERRRE

84.38% (2020: 83.87%)*
was either satisfied or very
satisfied with the Group as
a whole

HASERE FRTME
HIEERE

2021

Group cohesiveness
FER

G4.71% (2020: 65.63%)
has been working with the
Group over a decade

ERAKERGBEATF

2021

* According to the respondents of the employee satisfaction survey conducted by the Group in 2020 or 2021, as the case may be.
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Social Issues (continued)

Employee profile and engagement (Continued)

In the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company was the second
time in a row awarded “Good MPF Employer” by the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority.

Development and training

In order to create a supportive workplace which enables the employees to
develop their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately,
the Group provides subsidy for job-related training to all full-time employees,
irrespective of their rankings. Given the complexity of job duties, senior
management is provided with additional funding for outside training. Other
than financial support, the Group also organises group-wide training for its

staff from time to time.

Key topics covered by the training undertaken by the employees during the

year under review included:

o compliance and regulatory updates
° anti-corruption
. health and safety

The following is an analysis on employees’ training in the financial year ended
31 March 2021.
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Social Issues (continued)
Development and training (Continued)

HEEEm
B350 10

7 6 . 47 0/ 0 (2020: 90.63%)*

of employees received internal/external training

HE SRR A SR

Training
153
....................................................... éééék'déw};'é'fi}é{ﬁéé'é'ﬁ{ﬁléi}éé'smWWWWWWWW”WW”WW
ZIREND
15.38% 84.62% 15.38% 84.62%

(2020: 13.79%) (2020: 86.21%) (2020: 13.79%) (2020: 86.21%)

2021 Fomal 2021 5 | sta
emale eneral stal
© e © wmaT
by gender PY Male by employee Senior management
BHR 85 B category BEERAS
RESERE S

Total training hours completed

BZINEH

1 01 -5 (2020: 116.5)

Average hours TR £ 2.99 (2020: 3.64)

All employees

EREE

W =

8 (2020: 7)
Average hour ¥ 1 (2020: 1)

by gender Female 93 . 5 (2020: 109.5)
|
RUERIE D 2 Average hours 5L 3.60 (2020: 4.38)
Senior management 40 . 5 (2020: 51.5)
SEEEAE Average hours “FHFEFE: 10.13 (2020: 12.88)
by employee General staff 61 (2020: 65)
category FOR £
BET Average hours FEFEL: 2.03 (2020: 2.32
ZESERIBSD - ’ N ( )

* Total number of employees who received training in the reporting year is 26 (2020: 29).
RREFEEIEIINEB BB AR206A (ZTZTF 1 20A) ©

Annual Report 2020-2021 &

51



52

Corporate Social Responsibility Report ¥ &5EHRE

Social Issues (continued)

Health and safety

Since the Group’s main business is property investment and investment
holding, health and safety risks posed to its employees as a result of
occupational activities are relatively low. Nevertheless, the Group is
dedicated to provide a healthy and safe work environment to its staff and

therefore has established a policy in this regard with an emphasis on:
° compliance with all applicable statutory requirements

° ensuring a continuous improvement of the health and safety level
at workplace by reviewing the operating practices and seeking

comments from employees from time to time

. adopting measures which can reduce, control and if possible,

eliminate hazards at workplace

o conveying the Group’s concerns over health and safety to the MgtCo
and requesting it to get its front-line staff and contractors familiarised

with the proper procedure required in that regard

With a view to raising safety consciousness in workplace, not only did
the Group during the year under review provide its staff with information
concerning good housekeeping practices in office as published by
Occupational Safety and Health Council, it also organised a company-wide

online first aid talk delivered by Hong Kong Red Cross.

For the sake of the health of its staff, the Group in the reporting year kept
adopting special measures in the workplace given the serious threat posed
by COVID-19. Although initiatives taken varied according to the development
of the pandemic, they included work-from-home arrangement, change of

office operating hours and meetings held by electronic means.
For the year under review, no working day was lost due to work-related

injury whilst there was no work-related fatality case in each of the past three

financial years, including the reporting year.
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Social Issues (continued)

Labour standards

While the Group does not have its own specific policy regarding child
labour or forced labour, it is a statutory requirement in Hong Kong, a place
where the Group operates, not to engage the same. To ensure the Group’s
compliance with the relevant laws in Hong Kong, the management is directly

involved in the employment procedure.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on it relating to employment, health and safety, and labour standards as

mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide.

Supply chain management

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
MgtCo, professional service providers and some other companies that
deliver services for support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation
on areas such as insurance, banking and information technology. Services
of the indirect suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering,
cleaning and security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo. Based
on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the Group’s key
suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the latter one is
particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with the indirect

suppliers.

Since suppliers are the “extension” of the Group, their behaviour shall reflect
the Group’s values. Although the Group does not maintain a separate
policy on managing environmental and social risks of its suppliers, it has
embedded the relevant concerns in its environmental policy and health and
safety policy. As the MgtCo is the key supplier which poses a significant
impact on the Group, it is provided with relevant policies of the Group in the
hope that it can convey the Group’s concerns to the indirect suppliers. The
MgtCo is also requested to integrate the Group’s values into its operation
process where practicable and economically viable. Apart from written
communication, the Group has frequent direct dialogue and regular meetings
with the MgtCo. According to the said policies, the Group also reviews
its practices from time to time so as to reduce health and safety risks at
workplace and incorporates environmental considerations into contracting

decisions where practicable.
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Social Issues (continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

Although more than 65% of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during the
year under review. The feedback of the survey was encouraging. It showed
that all (2020: all) the respondents found partnering with the Group was not

merely mutually beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.

Product/service responsibility

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the management team gives
a walk-through of iISQUARE on a daily basis and pays visits to individual
shops when required so as to exchange views with the tenants directly
and respond to their concerns efficiently. The tenants can also contact the
management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone and email as
and when needed. As a means to ensure tenants’ dissatisfaction, if any,
is properly addressed to in a timely manner, a formal complaint-handling
mechanism is in place as well. From the interaction with tenants, it is noted
that there are some areas such as marketing and management services
the Group has to further work on. With the aim of maintaining a long-term
business partnership with tenants, the Group reviews its strategies from
time to time and adopts special measures in extraordinary situation. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Group continued to offer rent
relief to tenants in view of the difficult operating environment brought by the

ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.

Other than customer relations, the Group also recognises the importance
of personal data protection. Relevant concerns have been incorporated into
the Code and are communicated to the employees. According to the Code,
employees are required to safeguard the privacy and security of personal
information of the Group’s stakeholders by observing the data protection
principles of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Collected information is
accessible on a “need-to-know” basis. In view of the close relationship with
the MgtCo, the Group has also made known to it of the Group’s concerns in

this regard.
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Social Issues (continued)

Product/service responsibility (continued)

Providing a safe environment to the tenants and shoppers is also a great
concern to the Group. Other than having developed a communication
mechanism for ensuring timely notification to the tenants of confirmed cases
of COVID-19 and follow-up disinfection works, iISQUARE in the reporting
year was accredited under the Anti-Epidemic Hygiene Measures Certification
Scheme as jointly organised by the Hong Kong Tourism Board and the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency for having achieved a set of hygiene
standards. Although property management of iISQUARE is the job of the
MgtCo, the Group still closely monitors it by receiving updates from the
MgtCo via regular project meetings and daily report. On top of it, the project
team also patrols ISQUARE on a daily basis so as to ensure it is managed in
an orderly fashion. As for ad hoc issues, the MgtCo is required to report to

the Group promptly.

Anti-corruption

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a policy detailing situations in which acceptance of
advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning prevention of bribery and
channel for reporting suspected cases are set out in the Code. Employees
are required to undertake their adherence thereto. Besides, internal control
activities are in place to detect malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported
issues, the management will conduct investigation and handle them in the

manner set out in the Code.

To help the Directors and staff stay alert to the pitfall of bribery and enhance
their integrity, the Group during the reporting year organised a training
course concerning anti-money laundering for its Directors and provided its
employees with information about guard against ethical risks as published
by Hong Kong Business Ethics Development Centre. The Group was not
aware of any legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against it or its

employees in the year under review.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with any laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on it relating to product responsibility and anti-corruption as

mentioned in aspects B6 and B7 of the Guide.
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Social Issues (continued)

Community

In recognition of its role in advancement of the community, the Group has
established a community policy. General principles on donation, focus
areas (viz those enhancing community development, improving quality
of life, helping the underprivileged groups and aligning with the Group’s
development), and the form in which the support is delivered are stipulated
therein. During the year under review, the Group made donations to the

charities set out below.

Community

HE

AEERBEEESERESNAE  HELE
EABEEE - BPITHABRN—RRA - EHE
BOMETRER XELEEE  HEHEL
BMEAKEHR-HHIAR) RXESA - RA
FE - AEBEBRT TIIBZHEE

e PoLeung Kuk
RRB

e The Community Chest of
Hong Kong

LU ES

e Greeners Action
FEITH

e Epilepsy Foundation of Hong
Kong Limited
BEKBESEARARF

e FElderly Healthcare
Foundation Limited

EEMBREESBERAOA

For the financial year ended 31 March 2021, donations made by the Group amounted to HK$210,000 (rounded to the nearest thousand).
REE-_Z-_—F=F=+—BIMBEE  AEEZBRE HEK210,0007T CARER 2 FAIIR) -

The Group believes that going beyond corporate philanthropy by providing
venues to organisations for hosting charitable events is a good way to help
the needy as it can inspire others to follow and draw the public attention to
the needs of the underprivileged. Although requests made by charities for
venue provision had decreased significantly due to the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic, the Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2021 offered
venue to Orbis for hosting a roving exhibition at a substantially discounted

rate.
To show its continuous care to the local community, the Group granted Po

Leung Kuk, an iconic charity in Hong Kong, a licence for placing a donation

box at iISQUARE throughout the year in question.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWE

The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) submits herewith the
annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for

the year ended 31 March 2021.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 84 to 150.

EreditEREaE—_T-_—F=A=+—81t
FENFERRAEBEEZNIBRE -

TREXEME
REMERRAR([ARR ) R—METEZM
RRIH AR - A RN EE X ER
REBNBERDERBUECIRER E59E -

FEEK

KRG EFEXEBEMERERKEER - &
MEBARMEEERREMFBHRYBHRE
BIEE13 o

AAFRENBEL T (GBI AL ) RAB K
FREMEBEBAERIBE DT RN KRR
FisEa -

B iRk
REEHE-_T-—F=ZA=+—BILFENE
BRI EAEBE R Z B 88 AR ISR B %5
KEBAE1508

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

57



58

Directors’ Report #EEg#f%

Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share (2020: HK$0.21 per share) was
paid on 13 January 2021. The Board now recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.08 per share (2020: HK$0.10 per share) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2021.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to
the said final dividend from Wednesday, 15 September 2021 to Friday,
17 September 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, 14 September 2021.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 12 October 2021
to members whose names appear on the register of members on Friday,
17 September 2021 following approval at the annual general meeting to be held

on Thursday, 9 September 2021.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled
to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 2 September
2021 to Thursday, 9 September 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday,
1 September 2021.
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Business Review and Commentary

Business model and strategies

The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China. The Group generates and preserves its value through

being an investor in those property markets.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flows and a

low gearing ratio.

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes
in investment properties of HK$323.0 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2021, representing a decrease of approximately 33.0% compared
with the previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to various
rental concessions having been granted continually to most of the tenants
of iISQUARE during the whole financial year as a result of the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, the drop in both iISQUARE occupancy
rate and rental on renewal leases further reduced the rental income from

ISQUARE for the year under review.

Valuation losses on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2021 amounted to HK$1,809.2 million, compared with the
valuation losses of HK$1,314.1 million for the previous financial year. The
valuation losses will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash

flows of the Group.

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$777.6 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2021, compared
with a loss attributable to equity shareholders of HK$460.1 million for the

previous financial year.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Financial results (continued)

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iSQUARE amounted
to approximately HK$434.1 million for the financial year ended 31 March
2021, representing a decrease of approximately 25.8% compared with
the previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2021 was
approximately 76.7% (2020: 87.2%).

The Group’s investment properties, comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in

Guangzhou in the PRC, continued to generate rental income during the year.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2021 was HK$10,957.2 million,
compared with HK$12,682.4 million at 31 March 2020.

On 7 October 2013, Associated International Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a
50.01% owned subsidiary, entered into a facility agreement with a bank
comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million and a 3-year
revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million both at floating interest rate.
On 30 August 2016, AIHL entered into a supplemental agreement with
the bank for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019. In
compliance with certain conditions, the facilities have been further extended
for two additional years to 8 October 2021. Upon its maturity, AIHL intends
to extend the facilities for at least three additional years. At 31 March 2021,
the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$200 million (2020:
HK$200 million) and the Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total bank loans
divided by total equity) was 1.8% (2020: 1.6%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2021, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited
for general building and property management of iSQUARE, was 39
(2020: 37) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately
HK$27.4 million (2020: HK$28.7 million). The decrease in the related costs
was mainly attributable to the wage subsidy under the Employment Support

Scheme of the Hong Kong government.

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@  Adjusted cost of services to revenue ratio
o Definition and calculation: Adjusted cost of services to revenue
ratio measures the operation efficiency by comparing adjusted
cost of services as a percentage of revenue. Adjusted cost
of services are calculated by deducting impairment losses on
accounts receivable from usual cost of services. It shows the
level of direct expenditure required to generate every dollar of

revenue.

o Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 97.6% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: 97.6%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of ISQUARE.

. Quantified KPI data: The adjusted cost of services to revenue
ratio for ISQUARE at 31 March 2021 was 18.7% (2020
(restated): 15.3%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued) EAEEPNE T )
Key performance indicators (Continued) BRRIIEZE @)
(o)  Occupancy rate (b) HHEx

o Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable

area.

o Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing

performance of various properties in the Group.

o Quantified KPI data:

EENAE - BEERRREBRR
WEE77%  eiECEHAIEAEE
IHAERIHAEERN B O

BEy: ARBUARAEBRERE
%o HEXZ—ERTAEETRY
EHERTNER - LR FHE

—FRREMENHEXFTELB
REEINERE

EERRRBRFEFEIE -

Occupancy rate

Hi =

At 31 March At 31 March

2021 2020

R20214F 720204

Major investment properties FEREYWE 3A31H 3H31H

iISQUARE &% 76.7% 87.2%

Commercial properties in the PRC (RNl RS ES Y ES 68.1% 78.3%

Industrial properties in Hong Kong MR EBHIEDE 28.9%* 95.1%
* One of the leases expired in February 2021. * HER—OmHOR=ZE=—F=—AEm
Environmental policies, performance and related IRIBHE ~ RERBENES ; BEF

compliance; key relationships with stakeholders

HmAAREEMNEERR

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, BREBCRTHEPDMI RS 2 Bk ML BN S
compliance with environmental-related laws and regulations as well as EIRFIRE RRE - BT RIRIFABN AR LR

key relationships with its stakeholders as required by Schedule 5 to the Bl

AR BENGEREE 2 EZBEN® 5

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the Corporate Social HNAFREICES6EMTEEMLEHEEREN -

Responsibility Report on pages 36 to 56 of the annual report, and such EEDE

discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control — Principal risks and uncertainties” as set out on pages
24 to 27 of the annual report, and such discussion forms part of this

Directors’ Report.

Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

The leasing market in Hong Kong is still in a difficult situation suffering from
the recurring waves of the COVID-19 pandemic. With the continuation of the
pandemic, the management expects lower rental values to continue and will
take appropriate measures to cope with the situation. It is anticipated that
the adverse impact on rental income from iISQUARE and the results from

operations of the Group for the coming financial year will continue.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Wong Yiu Tak

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 95 and 96 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul shall retire from the Board by rotation at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. None of the directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors of
all the Company’s subsidiaries (except Associated International Hotels
Limited (“AIHL”) whose directors also included Miss Cheong Chong Ling,
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Wong Yiu Tak and Mr Lee Chung) were
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent non-

executive directors to be independent.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2021, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model

Code”):

(@ The Company

B RS
RE(EBBMERZMAERABRSF ETMRAD
(TEMHRN) #3131 - RRREWEIFAE L
FRTEEEMEBIMNAFERE - AAF
REEREFRTEFORBIAL

EERBSITRAEERD -
EROMNEEERNERR AR

BARRIRIRCE S MR GO (T EFGH ) %
BE2{FMEBFMBLMABR - IR LT HET
ANEFETEFRXZNFRETRD(MRESTAI)
MR RARRRRBEERARZMBRAT
(IR DELMBRR - ARRNES  &R1T
BABREBEARETRAZER)R_F
—F A=t BHEBALQR REARAE (A
HABEHGOIFEXVEFTEESE) I in 2z in
T

(a) ANANF

Number of shares

RBEE
Total % of total
Personal Family beneficial  issued voting
interests interests interests shares
HEBITH
BRERE
BEnfks IR B B
Name ®E BAER REER By Botk
Cheong Hooi Hong SR 4,035,792 590,000 4,625,792 0.97%
Cheong Kheng Lim SEIRIR 46,023,872 115,292 46,139,164 9.72%
Cheong Keng Hooi s 26,862,036 1,002,384 27,864,420 5.87%
Cheong Sim Lam fepede] 1,099,504 — 1,099,504 0.23%
Cheong Chong Ling B 412,000 - 412,000 0.09%
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and

EEK

RETHRASERS ~ 1

Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)
(b) Associated International Hotels Limited

EROMEEZEPNERRAR

()

(b) SEBBEEERRQE

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREAE
Total % of total
Personal Family beneficial issued voting
interests interests interests shares
HEBITH
BRERE
BEnfks IRP BB
Name ®E LGP 25 REER B B
Cheong Hooi Hong EIE S 2,073,992 - 2,073,992 0.58%
Cheong Kheng Lim SEIFMR 24,555,715 1,034,000 25,589,715 711%
Cheong Keng Hooi sEAmE 11,759,839 275,280 12,035,119 3.34%
Cheong Sim Lam $ELLE 1,807,155 24,000 1,831,155 0.51%
Cheong Chong Ling B 1,588,000 - 1,588,000 0.44%
(c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited ) REHRQF
Number of ordinary shares
ZEREE
Total % of total
Personal Family beneficial  issued voting
interests interests interests shares
HEBITH
BRERE
BnkER IR A7 48 B Y
Name H®H (EPN 2 REER B BOL
Cheong Hooi Hong SEIBIR 25 - 25 25%
Cheong Kheng Lim SEIRPR 25 - 25 25%
Cheong Keng Hooi S 25 — 25 25%
Cheong Sim Lam fibede| 25 — 25 25%
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the directors and br Bl T B E S - AR Q BIRRRE H 4058352

chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2021, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

FERREEMATERGME
B PR KR

B BT E A ARER RESTTIRA BRI
N - ARRVEBRE - WIREERBESIEHIE
336 E LN EXRMHERBER  RZE=—
FZA=ZT—REBBARTIRM ZERENT

Number of Percentage of total

shares issued voting shares

HEBITH

BEREERSD

RBEE BB

Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited REBRAF] 237,370,032 50.001%

Cheong Kheng Lim SEIRAR 46,139,164 9.72%
(Note 1)(5%1)

Cheong Keng Hooi SEmrE 27,864,420 5.87%
(Note 2)(5¥2)

Lim Yoke Soon HE 46,139,164 9.72%
(Note 1)(5%1)

Wu Soo Huei WNEE 27,864,420 5.87%

(Note 2)(7£2)

Notes:

(1) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 46,139,164
shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 46,139,164 shares,
46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 115,292 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

2) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is the same as the 27,864,420
shares disclosed by Ms Wu Soo Huei. Out of the 27,864,420 shares,
26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, and 1,002,384 shares
were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.

n.

(1) ERMAEEMBERENRGANREEL T REY
46,139,164 % i 15 1B R © 7£46,139,164AZAX 1D -
46,023,872 BB EFA - 115,202 Bl A H
RBMEBL A -

@ SEMBErEEENEGESESRLIHEYN
27,864,420 % B 13 1B [R) © 7£27,864,420 & X 15 -
26,862,036 /1% A EMIE S EF5E - 1,002,384 1% Al &
HiBREELtHE -
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, its parent company or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly
or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

There are no changes in respect of the directors’ emoluments at the
Company level for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 when compared
with the last financial year whilst the changes at the Group level are due
to allowances for expenses actually incurred by the executive directors at
the subsidiary level. The Group’s policy regarding such expenses has not

changed.

Indemnity of Directors
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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Management Contracts

(@)

Agreements exist between the Company and AIHL, a 50.01% owned
subsidiary, whereby AIHL agrees to provide administrative services
(company secretarial) and non-administrative services (office facilities
and staff) to the Company for an indefinite period. The aggregate
fees paid to AIHL for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
HK$1,200,000 (2020: HK$1,200,000).

A management agreement exists between AIHL and Cushman &
Wakefield Property Management Limited whereby this management
company is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of iISQUARE. The
management agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months
commencing on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed
on an annual basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination by
AIHL. Manager’s remuneration of HK$600,000 (2020: HK$600,000)
was paid by AIHL for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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Fixed Assets EEE

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows: REBERREMHENT -

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation HERSEARLFHY
Location Existing use Term of lease
b 2 RERAR HEFH
iISQUARE (excluding an office on 9th Floor) Shopping centre Medium

63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

RES (NEELRNVENRAE) B AR
MBS HMBCE S+ =57

(JLREIHBER 742555 )

Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and car parking spaces Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor,

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong,

Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

HETERE TS RIPERL A
HTABR - —1EAER R

HRLA ~ L2 ~ L3RLA{FERL

NEBEDAE -—BZ0R

(BB ER225%)

Goodluck Industrial Centre Petrol filing station, Medium
Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, showrooms, car parking

808 Lai Chi Kok Road, spaces and car

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon workshops

(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

IFHETEF L L~ BRAIE - B KRER AR

W —8 . =R
NERDEHAENBET/R
(R /LBE M 57805 )
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Fixed Assets (continued)

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

(Continued)

Location

b B

Existing use

RERR

U=

i

it

(%)
BERFENEEDE @

hii

RS [of

Term of lease

HEFH

Euro Trade Centre

5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and
Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No. 366)

BEZ 50

Tig
EETmBRT=2TH5% R
EHET -T2 +=5%
(55 1B 3665 )

Yi An Plaza

Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,
No. 33 Jianshe Liu Road,
Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou,

PRC

HRES

NE—ZE M8
RN T SR
ERABE=T=%

Offices

Offices

Long

=H

Medium

T
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s revenue attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 9% and 37% of the Group’s
total revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted

for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their close associates or any
member of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any

interest in these major customers.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2021 are set out in notes 20 to 21 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 24 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$210,000 (2020: HK$441,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 151 to 152 of the annual report.

Auditor

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021

FFIBEE
REBRBEREYREENEEREERAR
MEHNARFERE151E1528 ©

2
LERRHDEBHDHGER - HEHREE -
P 52 55 0 T 60 58 25 T AE 2 2 ) A BT 43
% RS BRMREAEAS LR -

EEEEW
E
EEe

BB —E-—FXAZt+NE

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

73



74

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEHSEEEASEAGRE

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 74, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983
and 1984 respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is
a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 72, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been
the Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels
Limited since 1984. He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is
also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various

subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 68, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 62, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 41 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling (also known as Cheong Chong Ling
Diamond), aged 50, joined the Group as an assistant to directors in 1997.
She has been a director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited. Miss Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Science from the School of Hotel Administration at Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 65, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman),
remuneration committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as
member) of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr
Chow has significant experience in accounting and finance and has been an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr Wong Yiu Tak, aged 74, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2017. He currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. Mr Wong holds a degree of Bachelor of
Science (Honours) from The University of Hong Kong and a Master of Law
from Peking University. He is now a serving solicitor in Hong Kong and a

consultant to Messrs. S.K. Wong & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EEHEEEEASEARE

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 75, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Tse is a veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong, England and Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs

Stephen Lo & P. Y. Tse, Solicitors since 1987.

Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 70, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss
Chan was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 41 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 64, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, AcG, Acs, aged 51, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, cra, aged 52, is the accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in
2008, Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field

of accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

BB R &

KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
84 to 150, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B3 Z 2R

Key Audit Matters

B EL SR

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, HREZEESHEERMNEZLHE - ZEE K
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial R AU RRNERRAEENEE - GLLF
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the HREAHRMEBEZERBEAMBHRELLEZRE
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and BITEER R TeHELEHEREBNE
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 8o

these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

DR A IR 12 R SR 1(d)

The key audit matter
BREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRENERNIEEZSBE

The Group holds a portfolio of investment properties located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. These
investment properties are primarily represented by iISQUARE,
a shopping and entertainment complex located in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Hong Kong.
ERERBEERFEARKNEBAEREREDE - &
LREMENTERRBBERES - BRBESUEES
SOH - B EGERERBY L

Management’s assessment of the fair value of investment
properties is based on valuations performed by an external
property valuer in accordance with recognised industry
standards.

B2 ERIRINID Y AL (BN R AR R A 0 3 N IR AEFTHETT
L E  AHEREMEN R ABE -

One of the key drivers of the valuation of investment
properties is rental income which can be volatile, particularly
in light of the current economic status of the retail industry in
Hong Kong.
REWELENE P —ERRESHE XS FERBNHE
SWA - BRIRERERNEETEENBIRN -

Tian Teck Land Limited k&t EAR A 7

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties included the following:

BABEHE B MR GENEZRTFRENTER

o assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued,
and considering their objectivity and independence;
FHEIMNEY E M ERME AR - ERMEMENSRRE
FHB o URERETEIENETIE

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group on
which the management’s assessment of the fair value of
investment properties was based;
BEieEhEEEERNINELEMSEIREN G
EMENAREBEMREOBERS

° discussing with the external property valuer the valuation
methodology and key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the valuations;

BN ERD 5T R B E A R ET FTERA O = 2
SR
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

A 1E )

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BRI E AN 12R &5 BRI 1() »

The key audit matter
BREXEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RENERNTEEZBE

We identified valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as a key audit matter because the valuation of investment
properties is inherently subjective and requires significant
judgement and estimation which increases the risk of error or
potential management bias.
BMEESENREME LAY ABREZSE AR
REMEHEFEEAIHND - LEFEEXRWHE
FfbET - fEMEHN T KA E IR EEER R ER -

with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, on a sample basis evaluating the valuation
methodology applied by the external property valuer and
challenging the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the valuations, including capitalisation rates, prevailing
market rents and comparable market transactions, by
comparing the key estimates and assumptions used by the
external property valuer in the valuation of each investment
property with market available data and/or government
produced market statistics; and
EHRMOA B EMEAENHT - AR - 5
NI A B D T ER AR B0 (i (B J7 VA ANSE 1R EL BN W)
EHEMESREYEHETRAN T MG RERRE
FAOTSEIER, BB RN TISR S - 8
RERMRANEZGANRZ(BEERNMELEE B
THTISEEMAI RN TSRS ) IREER « &

comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information,
including committed rents and occupancy rates, provided
by the Group to the external property valuer with underlying
contracts and documentation.
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Information Other Than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B3 Z 2R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B3 Z 2R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B3 Z 2R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Yau Ngai Lun, Alan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REEEREMEERKRAXR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) 8 = =—$=H=+— B It FE (LE¥ 5| R)

2021 2020
Note $°000 $'000
BaE Fr Tt
Revenue WA 3 444,882 600,054
Cost of services i8I (96,362) (92,167)
Gross profit EX 348,520 507,887
Other revenue Heplg A 5 9,271 17,170
Other net income/(1oss) Eablzs(E18) 35 5 2,933 (2,668)
Administrative expenses 1TIER (37,772) (40,370)
Profit from operations before valuation REYELESBAHN
changes in investment properties REER 322,952 482,019
Valuation losses on investment properties % & ¥ (LB EE 12(a) (1,809,195) (1,314,131)
Loss from operations after valuation REYELESBHEN
changes in investment properties KREEa (1,486,243) (832,112
Finance costs B E A 6(a) (3,047) (6,532)
Loss before taxation MRELAIES B 6 (1,489,290) (838,644)
Income tax FrisHi 9(a) (50,955) (77,834)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER
income for the year 2EWALLEE (1,540,245) (916,478)
Attributable to: TH AL :
— Equity shareholders of the Company — — ‘A RIS A% B (777,623) (460,124)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIEAR AR SR M (762,622) (456,354)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER
income for the year ZEWALEE (1,540,245) (916,478)
Loss per share — basic and diluted EREE — 24X R %S 11 $(1.64) $(0.97)

The notes on pages 90 to 150 form part of these financial statements. FINEIS0EHNM BRI EHRERA—Z D

e A Bl IR R LB OB DI B HT £ 10

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set

out in note 10.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=Z2=—&=8=+—H (LB ¥ 3 R)

2021 2020
Note $°000 $’000
Bzt Fr T
Non-current assets FREEE
Fixed assets BETEE 12(a)
— Investment properties — AU 10,740,522 12,545,780
— Other properties, plant and equipment  — E % - B L&RE 58,245 61,913
10,798,767 12,607,693
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable, deposits and EURERR ~ Rl RTERFK
prepayments 14 190,846 106,521
Current tax recoverable INER UL FTISL 9(c) 8,468 129
Pledged bank deposits BIRHIBI TR 15 21,801 2,956
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 16(a) 430,918 480,298
652,033 589,904
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HEMEN SR EETER 17 38,341 32,276
Deposits received BWET & 18 154,626 176,500
Provision for long service payments REARS & EE 19 1,505 1,747
Bank loan — secured RITER — HEH 20 200,000 =
Current tax payable NERFETETS L 9(c) 6 13,621
394,478 224,144
Net current assets REBEERE 257,555 365,760
Total assets less current liabilities EERERABER 11,056,322 12,973,453
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank loan — secured RITER — BIEH 20 - 200,000
Government lease premiums payable FERT BB 21 1,649 1,722
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAE 9(d) 97,486 89,368
99,135 291,090
NET ASSETS EEFE 10,957,187 12,682,363

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

85



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %4 B E4hn&
At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) R=Z2=—Ff=HA=+— B (B %5 R)

2021 2020
Note $000 $’000
BaE Fr Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#EE 22
Share capital [N 22(b) 121,830 121,830
Reserves [Ex 5,547,559 6,420,128
5,669,389 6,541,958
Non-controlling interests R IR R 5,287,798 6,140,405
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 10,957,187 12,682,363
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021. BFEeN T —F A HHBRETEFAIEL -
Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim o Ea
Director Director EEE SEIRM
The notes on pages 90 to 150 form part of these financial statements. FOE150E MM sEB AT BIREKA —3 D ©

86 Tian Teck Land Limited XEibEHR QA



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERB R
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) B8Z 2 =-_—&=F=+—H It FE(UBEZIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARERRREN
Non-
Share Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve earnings Total interests equity
FER
BE  BRE  REER wE  RREE EZAE
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fitzx T T T T T T
Balance at 1 April 2019 R20195F4 A1 BHVAER 121,830 900951 6183436  7,206217 6,800,124 14,006,341
Changes in equity TEERGEE .
for the year:
Loss and total comprehensive R E B E R
income for the year PERALE - —  (460,124)  (460,124)  (456,354)  (916,478)
Dividends approved in respect  BR E—BIHEE
of the previous financial year  HLEEIARE. 10(b) = = (104,441)  (104,441) = (104,441)
Dividends declared in respect BRI BEE
of the current financial year ~ EEHIRE 10(a) - = (99,694) (99,694) = (99,694)
Dividends paid to SAEERBRAOBRE
non-controlling interests — — - - (203,365) (203,365)
Balance at 31 March 2020  #42020%3A31A Rk
and 1 April 2020 20204 A1 B 48R 121,830 900,951 5,519,177 6,541,958 6,140,405 12,682,363
Changes in equity rEERREE !
for the year:
Loss and total comprehensive AN E51E %
income for the year 2EMAEE - - (777,623)  (777,623)  (762,622) (1,540,245)
Dividends approved in respect B F—BIHERE
of the previous financial year ~ $t/AERIIE S 10(0) - - (47,473) (47,473) - (47,473)
Dividends declared in respect  BRAHTNERE
of the current financial year  ERAIRE 10(g) - - (47,473) (47,473) - (47,473)
Dividends paid to ZAFEERR R RS
non-controlling interests - - - - (89,985) (89,985)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021 3831 A& 121,830 900,951 4,646,608 5,669,389 5,287,798 10,957,187
The notes on pages 90 to 150 form part of these financial statements. FI0E 1508 KM s B AR EIRK A —2BH o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,.v'\/?-\fﬁﬁfﬁéi%

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) @ Z 2 =-—f=A=+—HILEE (LB EIR)

2021 2020
Note $°000 $'000
P Fr Tt
Operating activities ReEEE
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE (1,489,290) (838,644)
Adjustments for: FEIFE :
— Interest income FLEMA (7,473) (13,220)
— Finance costs — BB 3,047 6,532
— Depreciation — I E 4,328 4,342
— Valuation losses on investment — REMELEERE
properties 1,809,195 1,314,131
— Net loss on disposals of fixed assets — REE T & EE B F5E 10 =
— Foreign exchange (gain)/loss — SNESTE N (BF)) /518 (2,923) 2,667

Operating profit before changes in EEESEBHLERT
working capital 316,894 475,808
Increase in accounts receivable, deposits FEUBRFR - 574 R IE T FIE AN

and prepayments (85,475) (78,551)
Increase in other payables and accruals — E-fth B~ 7% K e+ 2 ARG N 6,075 1,489
Decrease in deposits received BURET & Rk (21,874) (20,594)
(Decrease)/increase in provision for long & ERARTS & M GRiL ),/ 1EN

service payments (242) 196
Cash generated from operations REXKRMBNERSE 215,378 378,348
Tax paid BFIA
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BB BREH (64,629) (69,808)
— PRC tax paid — B ERE (162) (205)
Net cash generated from KETHEBNESTE

operating activities 150,587 308,335
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows G8RERER
For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) @ Z — 2= —&=A=+—H L FE (LBEFR)

2021 2020
Note $°000 $'000
Pt Fr T
Investing activities REEE
Interest received EHAE 8,622 13,063
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEEEMNK
other than investment properties (TBREEEYH) (670) (992)
Payment for expenditure on WEWHES HAR
investment properties (1,032) (2,781)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BIRIRRIT R (), E
deposits (18,845) 10,191
Net cash (used in)/generated from BRETE(FTA),Frigm
investing activities RERE (11,925) 19,481
Financing activities A& EE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENmEHERENEARD 16(b) - (7)
Payment for government lease SRR
premiums payable 16(0) (69) (66)
Interest paid on government lease BT HE T S
premiums payable 16(0) (90) ©3)
Interest paid on bank loan B IRITERFLE 16(0) (2,720) (5,750)
Other borrowing costs paid B E M E R 16(b) (251) (730)
Dividends paid ESEN =) (94,946) (204,1395)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & 3z 1~ JE#2E A% AL R A% &, (89,985) (203,365)
Net cash used in financing activities & EETANRE TR (188,061) (414,156)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBREEBYMRDFE
equivalents (49,399) (86,340)
Cash and cash equivalents 7A2020/2019F4A1BE SR
at 1 April 2020/2019 BEZEEY 480,298 566,645
Effect of foreign exchange rates IINEERFBNTE
changes 19 (7)
Cash and cash equivalents M3ABIENESRRESEEY
at 31 March 16(a) 430,918 480,298
The notes on pages 90 to 150 form part of these financial statements. FI0E1508 MM B A Mz —F 5 °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 24 7% ¥ % 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note
2 provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(h)(ii), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being

constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are
still in the course of construction or development at the end
of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1))

Other properties, plant and equipment

Other properties, plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and equipment,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g))

and impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(f)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to

obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not

the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is recognised in

accordance with note 1(p)()).

1

FESEFBER

(f)

HEEE

RE#HFRGEE  AREFEZANR
BENHES —BHE - KH—HEaH
R—BHRAEX-AEHRIEEN
S FE B IAREUAE - RIRZEKIE
ReBe—JEEE - EXFRNAE
TECDHANEENERARBREZE
RPESEBABIRENZ - AIHE
BEREERIZHIE -

BEAKEERLEAR - BEHEEHN
HEREFTREHERMEEASRL
LHE - FHEREEEEMRGEN
%W%K%ﬁixﬂ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
AlZBERER Y BRRERSE
&Z ZRHER T ERKEEE -

SHEMIERENARKIH
l& mﬂﬁﬁﬁgmgﬁ

Mk
o>
ES
%HF @

SRV

HQM/II\ ’71{{5 1.2@&4%/\ ° Z<<<
47 ,\E’JTE@HSZ)\&E”WDE( )iy
‘E?J\ ®

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

95



Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40

years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated

on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables) and

accounts receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(h)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is

material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective

interest rate; and

— accounts receivable: discount rate used in the

measurement of the accounts receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(h)

M

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events

within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL

model applies.

Loss allowances for accounts receivable are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(h)

U

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the debtor
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is
90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost

or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1 FESTTEER @)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) FEEEFEREERE@®E

(Continued)

M

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest

on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit

rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability

to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due

status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

U

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
accounts receivable (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to

their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
accounts receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash

flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in

profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that other properties, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)(i)

and (ii)).

Accounts and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is

required before payment of that consideration is due.

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(h)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the

receivables are stated at cost less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing

costs (see note 1(r)).

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(h)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Employee benefits

()

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

1

FTESFTBER @)

()

FriS %t &)

SRR BB 1(d) T B0 B 5 B A
AR BEAENRENE - FHERN
JETE RS E SR TR R R R B
4 7 2 B DA L AR 1 S 420
MR RETHE BRI ATNR
ER—(AmEERSE - M
() B BT R A B T 2 B P
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WA ISR - EERESE S
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EEFR - RIEDHITRIERE R
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EREEENE B THIRE -

AEEEESERE BRKERFE
BLERIAEENRAE - IRAEH
BT EB AT BE IS R S0 E0 BT A1) A
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a

net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets

and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

(0) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated

at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

1

FESEEER

()

Fﬁ%#ﬂ(ﬁ
AEFETHEER R EEPEEH
BIFIR - SARFHE o AEFELT
BEEAERSEAARNAEME S
TE 17158 HE AN HR RS T 2 4K 434 AN HA RS
BEE - I BHA TS EEE
SR+ A A BAS B S A HAFESE Y
HEE

— ZAHRBEEMRE : ARF
RSB S IRFREERS
8 AFASERZEEMFE
ZRIE =

— BEERBEEMAE: G4&
EMEENALR—HEHKE
FAIAT E A — IR PSR
B

— R EHRER: X

°
il
I3

ot n§

— TRMNERER
BEEHEIE B BEES
REECERIBAEREE
Bl KERLEFR I A E A
LAUR B BRI ) + $20% 58
AEREBRAREARIBBEEMN
TBEREFIEARE - kA
NERZEEMEEZS

= o

/IJJH

EERIBERE
WEARBARD R ENBHRDE
RRBERY  METZEHEAS
EHRBEERENERING « B
{EH AT e hET - EREIRER - 1
REWEMBESA - RIREHET
S5 ERORER TR -



Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Further details of the

Group’s revenue recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the

accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

1
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 1 FESFBER
(s) Related parties (Continued) (s) EEHHFE(Z‘E)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following o) —EERBOTFEEMTI 1'5‘
conditions applies: 1 B A2 A S B AR
5o

()  The entity and the Group are members of the ) ZEBEXEEYREA
same group (which means that each parent, —SEEMNKE(AZEAR
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the 7 WBARMEARWES
others). ANRIFILEERE) -

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —FEEEES—EEX
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a NSRS %‘fﬁ%(im
member of a group of which the other entity is a S—ERBFESEEETK
member). BREE ARIHEED

%)

(i)~ Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBHZR—F=H
party. VEEDE -

vy  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (iv) —1§’§§%§§*7‘7§’§%E’\]
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. EhE ME—EBEE

ZEZFEBHNBER
=l c

(v The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEEEANEESEAK
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an EEEMBNEENES
entity related to the Group. BRI A E R

EU% ©

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZEBXE LM E)EA

person identified in (a). FTad e A A T2 H sk £ [F
I%” ©

(viij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) _E#tEE(a)()ERFTRER

influence over the entity or is a member of the ANTHZEEREEATE

(viii

key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(viil)

Be 2
3 2 X

jj&‘xsu FRE(HZEE
RNRDHBREEAS ©

ZERIEMBEERET
B E( —fER & M AR E
DN SESYNSIEa
EEABR

—RAATHREMLREEBARMLME
5‘5 R AR ERATRHEZ
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are deducted in reporting the
related expense in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the

Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods

have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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1

FESETBR @
t) EIHRE

SR AP BREDFBENE S
HIEE B - BTN TAEE
BEIREBASNNAERSEE
KRS EE B RITERIRRES
SHERB AR — 5 -

|

ERIERHEE D EATAGFETE A
HUBREZR - BORZSFEED
EABRUNEERE XL HEEM
FRBMLE  £EIFME  FFPE
RIS - 7 HE MR IRFE FTIR
RO TDER R EERENEEE T E
AL BIVERIGS - IRERTEXH
BED A AEREY AR - RIA]
BEEHfETE -

(u) BRAFHHEL
HWESEREBEAEBEKERSRTH
BE - T A 52 1B 7T A5 38 <7 H P R 1
B - BIR BT AOR R A H A8 FE R 7%
b o ARG R (EAERE R ST MM RY
HAEREHRA S BEELNR—H
RIAERET A RS -

SRS
EEGMAGRN T ZIEERBUBRE
FEADWERT » BLETEAEEZER
HAR B RS o Brp - AT ROZERI B B
SEEH :

— (BB BRSERDEIRNERI X
BHER]

— (FEGHEADF1IRNER] R(EE
FEIEADESIRAERT EARER

A EHERB R B HAKEEE A kAT
HiR AR Bk 2 51 R 48 R M IO E
-7

AEEY ERBEREZ TS B ARE
RHFTE R R RE o



Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not include
any customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the

Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.

No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s
revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong

and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

LN
AEENEBEIBIERE -

WARIFEREMENCD W YRS WAL
o

AEERAS MBS LE  BE-T

S FR-T-TE-A=t—ALEE -
A5 B 4 2% 5 (LA BB 10% 9 FE 7
B -

AEBRAEE-AREDH B[ WER
Bl At EME—AREDENELDE

ENAREMEHENKAMNEKEDREE
BRPEARKME(THE]) - SunREE
Rt B 27 -

Other Revenue and Net Income/(Loss) Hinlg AR (E18) F
L
2021 2020
$’000 $’000
T Tt
Other revenue Hg A
Interest income FL2WA 7,473 13,220
Compensation from early termination of leases 2 RT4% 1FTH & PriE1S 743 2,350
Others HAth 1,055 1,600
9,271 17,170
Other net income/(loss) Hiplesd /(FE) B4
Net loss on disposals of fixed assets REBTEEREEFSE (10) —
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) HNESTE AT, (518 )58 2,943 (2,668)
2,933 (2,668)
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

6 Loss Before Taxation 6 FRBIAIEIE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BB RTEEE TG, (GTA) ¢
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
T Tt
(@) Finance costs (@ ®EHAA
Interest on bank loan IRITERF B 2,710 5,711
Other borrowing costs E M EFRACAR 250 731
Interest on government lease FERTEFHLE RS
premiums payable 87 90
3,047 6,532
(b)  Staff costs (b) BIE
Salaries, wages and other benefits” 4 ITEREMEFR 42,038 46,035
Contributions to defined contribution RERFERIKRGT B
retirement plans 1,070 1,475
43,108 47,510
# The amount has been deducted $4,679,000 (2020: Nil) relating to the i EHBCONBREAETBBT R ZE G2
wage subsidy under the Employment Supporting Scheme of the Hong Z TEMRE4,679,000C(ZE-F4F : &) o
Kong government. The purpose of the wage subsidy is to provide TEMMZENRADERBBIE - N
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who would RBEETEERE - BEBEMAGR - A&
otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group EEHAERATESHRE L EESA
is required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and to REfMEELIE -
spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
F FiT
(c) Otheritems (c) HtEE
Gross rental income from investment KREYMENESWALLRE
properties (444,882) (600,054)
Less: Direct outgoings B BEE W 96,362 92,167
(348,520) (5607,887)
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN BN &
— audit services — ZHERTS 1,321 1,321
— tax services — B R 96 204
— other services — HAR 374 374
Depreciation charge WEER
— owned properties, plant and equipment — BEYE  BEREE 4,328 4,325
— right-of-use assets — (EREERE - 17
Impairment losses on accounts receivable FEWER R B 18
(note 14(p)) (FtsE14(0)) 13,571 1,168
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Notes to the Financial Statements BHi§ik &R Mz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

7 Directors’ Emoluments 7 EEMe
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEBCR BMEDI Y E383(1) i M A 8] (#
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEEMEER) R OI)E280 5 M E =B
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as ST
follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2021
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e EHR BIRGHE
0k BYRIE BEEAL 5 B
$000 $°000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T

Executive Directors HITES

Cheong Hooi Hong EIEE 100 1,512 700 - 2,312
Cheong Kheng Lim SEIRM 100 2,379* 700 - 3,179
Cheong Keng Hooi §E L 100 1,604 300 - 2,004
Cheong Sim Lam fibede) 100 1,748 300 - 2,148
Cheong Chong Ling feliEheg 100 1,722+ 120 24 1,966
Independent BUYFHTES

Non-executive

Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul AEh 340 - - - 340
Wong Yiu Tak =R 340 - - - 340
Tse Pang Yuen Bl -y 170 - - - 170

1,350 8,965 2,120 24 12,459
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

7 Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

7 ESME@

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme 2020
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e FUR RIS
ek R BYTEfEAT K mE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T T T
Executive Directors HITES
Cheong Hooi Hong EIEE 100 1,892 700 = 2,692
Cheong Kheng Lim IR 100 2,404 700 = 3,204
Cheong Keng Hooi EmE 100 1,601 300 — 2,001
Cheong Sim Lam frbede) 100 1,744 300 = 2,144
Cheong Chong Ling IR 100 1,759" 120 24 2,003
Non-executive Director FHTES
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles”  #381" 24 129 = = 153
Independent BYFHTES
Non-executive
Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul AEE 340 — — — 340
Wong Yiu Tak =EE 340 — — = 340
Tse Pang Yuen Eil - 170 - — - 170
1,374 9,529 2,120 24 13,047

The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of a residential
property to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an estimated rental value of
approximately $1,485,000 (2020: $1,581,000).

# The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of a residential
property to Miss Cheong Chong Ling with an estimated rental value of

approximately $1,485,000 (2020: $1,569,000).

The vacation of office of Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles as a director took
effect on 26 June 2019.

Tian Teck Land Limited k&t EAR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

8

Individuals with Highest Emoluments 8
The five highest paid individuals for 2021 and 2020 are all directors of

the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

%%@H%Ai

MALTHRARARNES EM&E’?U%&R\‘

FMi3E7 ©
Income Tax 9 FIEMH
Taxation in the consolidated statement @ HFEEZRHEHMEEmEAR
of profit or loss and other comprehensive Fr R EBHiIEA :
income represents:
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
T T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AHEHIE — HEREH
Provision for the year AEFETHIALERF 42,733 68,638
Over-provision in respect of prior years AR FEEEBTE (58) (60)
42,675 68,578
Current tax — PRC AHABIIE —
Provision for the year AEE R IALERE 162 193
Deferred tax ERERIE
Changes in fair value of investment properties 1 & ¥ZE N 7t BERE (209) (303)
Origination and reversal of temporary =R EAMED
differences 8,327 9,366
8,118 9,063
50,955 77,834

The provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%

(2020: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year,

except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying

corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For

this subsidiary, the first $2,000,000 of assessable profits are

taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed

at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this

subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2020. PRC

taxation is calculated based on the applicable rate of taxation

in accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations of the

PRC.

ERENEREBRIZAFE/MET
FERERR I A16.5% (=T = T4

16.5% )T R E - AREE B
REEFBHMAG T AEEEATE

BIBRIN o Z I A B BRSO E
2,000,0007T%8.25% i R&TE « 82 1
K RE ST LR A IR 16.5% T KT E -
ZHBARMEBFESHERBRIZ
“Z-TFERNEESE - PEH
T8 2 1 B ABRE 2 B AR T iE A 8
MEGTE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

P
9 Income Tax (Continued) 9 Fﬁ- EJ‘*R(%)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) PG X HAIRE AR RS
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: EEITEENEER
2021 2020
$°000 $000
Fr T
Loss before taxation BT RIS 1R (1,489,290) (838,644)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, LR EEEEES R
calculated at the rates applicable to profits 93 FA 75 = 5+ B BR T AT
in the countries concerned EEREETIE (246,273) (137,918)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAE S NIRRT 2 298,764 217,806
Tax effect of non-taxable income DA ENRIETE (1,478) (1,994)
Over-provision in prior years AT E £ BT (58) (60)
Actual tax expense ERFRIES 50,955 77,834
(€) Current taxation in the consolidated ) #HREMBEAMRREKA R
statement of financial position represents: FrERA :
2021 2020
$°000 $000
F Fx
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REEBRBNETHERE
for the year 42,733 68,638
Provisional Profits Tax paid B EHFIEH (51,201) (55,152)
(8,468) 13,486
PRC taxation IR 6 6
(8,462) 13,492
Representing: Rk
Current tax recoverable ZERFE U TS B (8,468) (129)
Current tax payable AEAFE TSR 6 13,621
(8,462) 18,492
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

g

(d)

Income Tax (Continued) 9 Fﬁ'?%*ﬁ(fé)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised: d) EERELHRIEAE :
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the BELRE MBI REREERIE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements BEMNHEKIDMAEZLEHT ¢
during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
of investment the related
properties  depreciation Tax loss Total
B
REMFE HEFEN
Bftf WERHE BEE e
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T Tr
Deferred tax arising from: RETFIREWIELERIF
At 1 Apri 2019 1201954 A1H 687 79,618 - 80,305
(Credited)/charged to B (REA),/ Rk
profit or loss (303) 9,366 — 9,063
At 31 March 2020 1202053 A31H 384 88,984 - 89,368
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4 A 1H 384 88,984 - 89,368
(Credited)/charged to TRz (GEA) /R
profit or loss (209) 8,414 (87) 8,118
At 31 March 2021 202143 A31H 175 97,398 (87) 97,486
Deferred tax assets not recognised: () REAWELEBIREE

(e)

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),

the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $145,881,000 (2020: $145,881,000)

as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which

the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax

jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under

current tax legislation.

RRM TN - B
RNEEFETE BN IS ADERNE R
LA RRFERT &R T AR HEE -
N [E K B 145,881,000 (= F
—Z4F ¢ 145,881,0007T ) B T
BERERABENEERBEE - B
WATROE - BUBBEBETREAR
H o
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

10 Dividends
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year

10

@ AFEERFNRAAEZRKRRER

N

2021 2020
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of BEIR &S
$0.10 per share (2020: $0.21 per share) AR HARS B & A%0.107T
(20204 : ®fR0.217T) 47,473 99,694
Final dividend proposed after the end of RS PRREE R ER
the reporting period of $0.08 per share kR B B & A%0.087T
(2020: $0.10 per share) (20204 : ®f&0.107T) 37,979 47,473
85,452 147,167

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the

reporting period.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the

R IR AR 48 B IR Z 3 0 TR A R H
B HARERE PRLEEEARE

==
=}

o

.

(b) BRE—MBRFERMGAH
AWK - BRAE R
REATHIRS

year
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
F Tt
Final dividend in respect of the previous BRE—RFE ¥R

financial year, approved and paid ARFEHE R T

during the year, of $0.10 per share RERRR B & A%0.107T
(2020: $0.22 per share) (20204 : §A%0.227T) 47,473 104,441

11 Loss Per Share — Basic And Diluted
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $777,623,000
(2020: $460,124,000) and 474,731,824 (2020: 474,731,824) shares
in issue during the year. There were no potential dilutive shares in

existence in 2021 and 2020.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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BREE — EXREE
GREABERKRBAFEN QA EE
P B FE {5 B5 18 777,623,000 (T =%
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Notes to the Financial Statements BHi§ik &R Mz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets

@

=
12 EE&EE
(@)
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
HER
FER
EEYE Hity % Hit&E et wE
$'000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
FTr Tr Tr i Tr
Cost or valuation: AR EE :
At 1 April 2020 20204 A1H 12,545,780 101,824 36,519 138,343 12,684,123
Exchange adjustments P& 1 A2 2,905 - - - 2,905
Additions HE 1,032 - 670 670 1,702
Disposals RE - - (202) (202) (202)
Fair value adjustments NABEAR (1,809,195) - - - (1,809,195)
At 31 March 2021 %2021F3A31H 10,740,522 101,824 36,987 138,811 10,879,333
Representing: K& :
Cost DN - 101,824 36,987 138,811 138,811
Valuation — 2021 HE — 20216 10,740,522 - - — 10,740,522
10,740,522 101,824 36,987 138,811 10,879,333
Accumulated ZIHE -
depreciation:
At 1 April 2020 20204 A1H - 42,438 33,992 76,430 76,430
Charge for the year REFHE - 3,517 811 4,328 4,328
Written back on disposals &z & B # [0l - - (192) (192) (192)
At 31 March 2021 M202153A31AH - 45,955 34,611 80,566 80,566
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2021 M202143A31H 10,740,522 55,869 2,376 58,245 10,798,767
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

(@

- =
12 Fixed Assets (Continued) 12 }:E,\E (4
(Continued) (@ @
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
REME Hib % - BE K&
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
HER
HFEXR
EEME Hib# Hih &&= NEt mE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
Cost or valuation: B fHE
At 1 April 2019 M2019F481H 13,859,790 101,824 36,432 138,256 13,998,046
Exchange adjustments 0 5, (2,660) — — — (2,660)
Additions BE 2,781 — 992 992 3,773
Disposals RE - - (905) (905) (905)
Fair value adjustments DL BEAE (1,314,131) — — — (1,314,131)
At 31 March 2020 202093 A31H 12,545,780 101,824 36,519 138,343 12,684,123
Representing: R¥:
Cost AR — 101,824 36,519 138,343 138,343
Valuation — 2020 ff{E — 2020%F 12,545,780 - - — 12,545,780
12,545,780 101,824 36,519 138,343 12,684,123
Accumulated REHE
depreciation:
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 818 - 38,917 34,076 72,993 72,993
Charge for the year REFEHE = 3,521 821 4,342 4,342
Written back on disposals & & F5# [0l — — (905) (905) (905)
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H — 42,438 33,992 76,430 76,430
Net book value: REFE
At 31 March 2020 M2020463A31H 12,545,780 59,386 2,527 61,913 12,607,693
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

At 31 March 2021, investment properties comprise ISQUARE

(b)

(excluding an office on 9th Floor), certain floors of Goodluck

Industrial Centre, certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building,

a floor of Euro Trade Centre and a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other

properties comprise an office on 9th Floor of ISQUARE, certain

units of an industrial property, a unit of a commercial property

and two residential properties in Hong Kong.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

= Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs

—_

~

RZE-_—F=A=+—H ' &E&
MEBEERES (T eEL R NE
HPHAE) BT EPLNE TIE
B iHETHEAENE TEN - Bk
B5HROM—EREXESHN—E -
HimEBELRESNERES N
BEOPRAE —ETERENETE
iz ~ — 1B EY R —EE LK RE
FEWE -

0 2REBEER
TREJAKENHSEREL
ERRREEEMGENRE
MEAAEE - ZFWERCH
ANKEBM B RELERDFE13
BIAREBEMAEIMAEN=
BEARBEEBR - AEREZRE
AT EETDER A @ AR
ERTERIZEMEE - #im
EEAABEFEREMER
DEHEMR -

— FEEfME: RERSF
—ERwmAEEIETE
BRERTISARREE
HBENRERAERE)
RetE8LnEE

— F_ERMGE: BRFE=
BRmABRIRES—
ERMABRBAGR)
WARREER A EARH A8
R AERFAELRE
B - TABEBABERE
RRTSBIENBAE

— FBZEAME: RAEX
AT AERBABERE

NAfEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets (continued) 12
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b)
properties (Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
None of the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level
2 valuations. The investment properties which are

categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

BYRN DI AEETE@

DA BEBRE)
REEIAL WU A FESE
R T AR
—BREE - RREES=
Emm@m&ﬁ%¥nmmr;

below:
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
F5 FI
Recurring fair value measurement BREEEEMTTEN
RREE
Investment properties categorised into X EFIEEF = EBRIHEERN
Level 3 valuations: WEME -
— Commercial properties in Hong Kong  — A BB RIS 3 10,356,600 12,138,200
— Commercial properties in the PRC — R EREEE 35,602 34,790
— Industrial properties in Hong Kong — R EENTEME 348,320 372,790
10,740,522 12,545,780
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, REE-_E-_—FK-_E-F
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or F=ZA=+—HIEE ' £F
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to —BREE — B M &L

recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy

at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Tian Teck Land Limited k&t EAR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were revalued at 31 March 2021 by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

(i)

E#@%E’J’D\J BETEw@)
HERRF
R-_ZE-_—F=A=+—8"

UREBREMPENRENEZ
B R AERD — AR
HEEEERARA 7(51\5\
ThAGBEBAEMBESE)
GEER  BHEEMHZY
ERTERE NPT AR A T
R ERETER BT
ERMEZ TEAER - &
12 8 B HE L ER & R E & A
%ﬁ%ui)ﬁi&ilﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ
TRERFNAS

F=ZERR
£t

AEBRBUEZEREE - B
MENFHEBABERE - X
ERIMEFLEXRNAER AN
HEREBHRESIRANE
RSN NEERBEVENHR
REE - EANTHBEEGHA

REEFENE

below: BEHEAT
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
BA{LEHER HAZNEE
Investment properties RENE 2021 2020 2021 2020
Commercial properties inHong Kong IR B EHIE £ E 2.27% —5.00%  2.33% —500% 0% — 76.7% 0% — 87.2%
Commercial properties in the PRC P EIRE £ 6.50% 6.75% 68.1% 78.3%
Indlustrial properties in Hong Kong AR EBNIENE 4.00% — 450%  4.00% —450% 0% — 28.9% 0% — 95.1%
The fair value measurement of investment properties REMEN AR EETEHD
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and FEKELBEER - BEER

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

HRR R LR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
(Continued)

The movements during the year in the balance of these

= (18)

REVENDAEETE@

(i)

FZBRANEEFENE

FH(&)

TFEERNE=BRAAEBELS

Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows: BREVEE BN -

Commercial Commercial Industrial

properties properties properties

in Hong Kong in the PRC in Hong Kong

URERKN LR E Y NAEBH

[EEYES [EEZYES TEYE

$°000 $°000 $°000

T T T

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A1H 13,439,490 40,480 379,820
Exchange adjustments PE 3% — (2,660) =
Additions HE 2,676 — 105
Fair value adjustments DR EBEAR (1,303,966) (3,030) (7,135)
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H 12,138,200 34,790 372,790
At 1 April 2020 120204318 12,138,200 34,790 372,790
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 8% - 2,905 -
Additions BE 1,032 - -
Fair value adjustments N BEFAE (1,782,632) (2,093) (24,470)
At 31 March 2021 R20214F3A31H 10,356,600 35,602 348,320

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “valuation losses on
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. All the valuation changes recognised in profit or
loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end
of the reporting period. The valuation changes will only
affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flows

of the Group.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(©

(d)

12 BElEEE@m

The analysis of net book value of properties (c) YIHEREFENDTUOT :
is as follows:
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
In Hong Kong, with remaining w55 FgpfHERs
lease term of:
— not less than 50 years — TAR505 151,997 153,417
— less than 50 years but not — DRB0FETDI10FE
less than 10 years 10,608,792 12,416,959
Outside Hong Kong, with remaining BRI - RHBERE
lease term of:
— less than 50 years but not — DRB0FETDI10FE
less than 10 years 35,602 34,790
10,796,391 12,605,166
Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor (d) EwEEEEM %8 RERA

vehicles.

o
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIi§ik R iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

12 Fixed Assets (continued) 12 E%ﬁ% &)

() The Group leases out investment properties under operating (e) HeEECELHAESHBIREYE - B
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to ten years, HESVAH—F2+4 WEERE
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time BETIHHERES  ERAEGRK
all terms are renegotiated. Certain leases include variable lease B EFETE - & THEBIERHE }5
payment terms that are based on the revenue of tenants. WA FTE R ] ST E (S FRERAEEN o
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or BURAIES sk L R AT S E T 5 %EEA
a rate recognised as income in profit or loss during the year BE T - F=A=+—HILHFE
ended 31 March 2021 were $7,916,000 (2020: $6,244,000). EEHFFPEZRAWA AE7,916,0007T

(ZZ =T : 6,244,0007T) °
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating AEBERBERBRE BHEFENATRE
leases in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the R4 & T E 1 R SR BB IR UL R 43R
Group in future periods as follows: HENFBEAT
2021 2020
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Within 1 year 1R 329,928 430,641
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F18E2FR 148,968 328,745
After 2 years but within 3 years 2F1%B3F R 85,032 153,582
After 3 years but within 4 years 3FRBEIFRN 56,659 90,090
After 4 years but within 5 years 4F1ZB5FR 41,884 56,609
After 5 years 5% 140,618 182,503
803,089 1,242,170
() Pledge of assets (H EEEKHF

At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying
value of $10,260,320,000 (2020: $12,043,834,000) were

pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

128 Tian Teck Land Limited XEibEHR QA
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Notes to the Financial Statements BHi§ik &R Mz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

13 Subsidiaries 13 B FE
The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the TRINEAREEFREMBARFE - BRA
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. SIRRESN - IR ARG R R

Proportion of ownership interest

Frib R el
Place of Group’s held
incorporation  Particulars of issued effective by the held by
Name of company and operation and paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
MK AKEN mAAE HHEAE
ARER R -$iok s BRTRAZREAFE BRED 58 BE IEER
Associated International Hotels Limited  Hong Kong $360,000,000 divided into 50.01% 46.41% 3.6% Property investment and
360,000,000 shares investment holding
S ER B E BB AR BB 360,000,000 A MERERRELRR
360,000,0008% 8z 7
Sparkland Investments Limited Hong Kong $2 divided into 2 shares 100% 100% — Investment holding
EE 275 2R R REER
Harkam Limited Hong Kong $2 divided into 2 shares 100% = 100% Property and investment
holding
BRAERAR g 275 2R R FRMERRERR
Metropolitan (International) Limited Hong Kong $8,000,000 divided into 100% 100% — Property investment
1,600,000 shares
ER(ER)BRRF BB 8,000,0007c5 A NERE
1,600,0008% %1%
Associated International Resorts Limited Hong Kong $20 divided into 2 shares 50.01% — 100% Inactive
BE 2075 R2MRAR (D TER
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong $200,000 divided into 50.01% = 100%  Property investment
200,000 shares
BEARDA BE 200,000 4 MERE
200,0008% %15
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

13 Subsidiaries (continued)

The following tables list out the summarised financial information

relating to Associated International Hotels Limited, the only subsidiary

of the Group which has material non-controlling interests. Total

ownership interest held by non-controlling interests was 49.99%. The

summarised financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(@ Summarised results

13 B2 F )
TNER P EE B BB R B R A Rl A B AL
BERME - ZARIRAEEE—HEEKX
RSB AR o IR AL 4
mAAR/R49.99% © TR EVIHI B E R
B ASEENA AT EAEHATEGE -

(@) FERZE

2021 2020

$000 $’000

T Tt

Revenue WA 434,184 588,560

Loss and total comprehensive AFEEEHEREEBALTE

income for the year (1,525,504) (912,864)
Loss for the year allocated to FEIZERR I R i PR A F E 1R

non-controlling interests (762,622) (456,354)

Dividends to non-controlling interests F IR ERRE (89,985) (203,365)

(b) Summarised assets and liabilities

b) BEREERE

2021 2020

$000 $'000

Fr Fr

Non-current assets ERBEE 10,466,703 12,257,237

Current assets MBNEE 591,698 528,248

11,058,401 12,785,485

Current liabilities MEEE (383,326) (213,112)

Non-current liabilities ERBEE (97,676) (289,470)

(481,002) (502,582)

NET ASSETS BEFE 10,577,399 12,282,903
Non-controlling interests’ proportionate  3F1ZE A& A% SR 25 OB BB A A1HY

share of the subsidiary’s net assets BEFETELDE 5,287,798 6,140,405
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

13 Subsidiaries (continued) 13 BT @)
(c) Summarised cash flows ) BREeERERE

2021 2020

$°000 $’000

F FT

Net cash generated from operating KETEDFERNIREFRE
activities 147,630 305,289
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEES(FTR),/Frss
investing activities IBE FE (12,706) 18,745
Net cash used in financing activities BB EBFTAMIR©F5E (183,130) (413,456)
Net cash flows REREFRE (48,206) (89,422)
14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and 14 R ~ eI KRNI
Prepayments

2021 2020

$’000 $’'000

T Tt

Accounts receivable R BR R 195,208 100,482
Less: Allowance for credit losses (note 14(0)) & : (EEE1EEE (HI3E14(0)) (11,590) (2,140)
183,618 98,342

Deposits and prepayments HEDSS 7,228 8,179

190,846 106,521
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments (continued)

(@)

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
for credit losses) which was included in accounts receivable,

deposits and prepayments as of the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

14 FEWERF ~ ST KBNS K@)

(a) BREZZDHT

RHREHBERER  BEERKE
K AlE MEMRANEEERER(E
R EEBIRER) AREDITT -

2021 2020

$°000 $'000

Fr Tt

Current (Note) AEEA(FE) 143,635 77,880

Less than 1 month past due 8 B P {E A 11,618 8,644

1 to 3 months past due BHITE3/EA 18,364 10,134
More than 3 months but less than B AR B3ME A B A 121E A

12 months past due 9,602 1,684

More than 12 months past due wEAERB121E A 399 =

Amounts past due [y clile -t 39,983 20,462

183,618 98,342

Note: The amount includes the receivable for lease incentives of
$143,457,000 (2020: $77,338,000) which is not past due. The
movement in the said receivable during the year will only affect
the accounting revenue but not the contractual cash flows of the
Group.

Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and 10
to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 23(a).

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

3 EHEAERERS REAEEED
360 HA E UK BR 3 143,457,00070 (= F
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and 14 BEWERRK ~ s & RFEF R @)
Prepayments (continued)
(b) Impairment of accounts receivable (b) FEWBRFURIE
The movement in the specific allowance for credit losses during AEERNECEEEECEGEZE N
the year is as follows: T
2021 2020
$’000 $’'000
T Tt
At 1 April 2020/2019 72020/2019%F4 A 1H 2,140 1,575
Impairment losses recognised (note 6(c)) & FERRIE E1E (ME6(c)) 13,571 1,168
Uncollectible amounts written off [Ehiaik:= NG RqEIE € (4,121) (603)
At 31 March M3A31H 11,590 2,140
15 Pledged Bank Deposits 15 SEHIRITEMR
At 31 March 2021 and 2020, bank deposits were pledged to a R_BE-_—FR_ZT-_FF=—A=+—H"

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

HERTTE R (2 B/ 3E20) ©

RITIFRE AEER - BB —RIgEEHRT

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 BERBEEEY
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ RERREZEYERE

2021 2020

$°000 $000

Frx Fit

Deposits with banks RITETER 397,408 446,256

Cash at bank and in hand RITERERS 33,510 34,042

430,918 480,298
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 16 fﬁ%&fﬁﬁ EBY) @)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) METEBFMEENEEZY
financing activities: ,EE :
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TRFVWNAEEREETHEELNE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. T EHRBREIRSLIEREE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which g B EHMELANAGBIKEZARE
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the R ERELLIARRRE R EGH
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from DERGEREREXRNMETE
financing activities. A e
Government
lease
Bank loan premiums Interest
— secured payable payables Total
BITER A
—BHEH BRtE FEAFIS, et
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(F¥7E20) (Ktzr21)
At1 April 2020 2020545818 200,000 1,791 142 201,933
Changes from financing MERSRERE
cash flows:
Payment for government S ABHE
lease premiums payable - (69) - (69)
Interest paid on government ERHITHETE
lease premiums payable - - (90) (90)
Interest paid on bank loan ERBITERHE - - (2,720) (2,720)
Other borrowing costs paid BRI EMERRA - - (251) (251)
Total changes from REBRRELYBTE
financing cash flows - (69) (3,061) (3,130)
Other changes: Hi 25 :
Interest on bank loan RITERFA - - 2,710 2,710
Other borrowing costs Hir AR A - - 250 250
Interest on govemnment FERTR AT OB RS,
lease premiums payable - - 87 87
Total other changes HinZges - - 3,047 3,047
At 31 March 2021 RW202163A31R 200,000 1,722 128 201,850
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16 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued) 16 WERIAELEEY @)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) METBFMEENEEZYH
financing activities: (Continued) B @)
Government
lease
Bank loan Lease premiums Interest

— secured liabilities payable payables Total
RITER et

— RHER HEakE TR 8 FERTHE FaE]

$000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000

T T T T T
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Hizk20) (Ff&E21)

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A18H 200,000 17 1,857 183 202,057

Changes from financing RERERERS :

cash flows:
Capital element of lease ~ BRTAEHEMERZL D

rentals paid = (17) = - (17)
Payment for government S RFTH1 B

lease premiums payable = = (66) - (66)
Interest paid on government 2 {4 BT ER| &

lease premiums payable - = = (93) (93)
Interest paid on bank loan B R {TERFI & - - = (6,750) (6,750)
Other borrowing costs paid 2 [ E b f& FRAR AR - = = (730) (730)
Total changes from BERLRELELE

financing cash flows - (17) (66) 6,573) (6,656)
Other changes: Hithg)
Interest on bank loan FITERHE = - - 571 5,711
Other borrowing costs HifERAA = = - 731 731
Interest on govemnment FER R E RS

lease premiums payable - - - 90 90
Total other changes Hingemes - - - 6,532 6,532
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H 200,000 - 1,791 142 201,933
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17 Other Payables and Accruals 17

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled

within one year.

18 Deposits Received 18
All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
except for $78,177,000 (2020: $129,347,000) which is expected to

be settled after more than one year.

Hth AR ST E
B R 3 R R AT — R
fit o

2WET£

B T 78177000 T ( = T = T &
129,347,00070 ) W& @ BRI BB —F1&
BN - BB STBA R —FEREN °

19 Provision for Long Service Payments 19 REIRKES%ERH
$’000
Fx
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4H1H 1,747
Provision written back for the year AN [ HE Bl A (242)
At 31 March 2021 R202143A31H 1,505

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

Tian Teck Land Limited X &t ZEHR A &

RIBEBCRBIESD) - AEBARK IR
hFHUAENE TREAER - ERLER
THAER—ENR - BENSREIZEHRET
RENFHE RRBEH - HERAKERK
HEINEASEEHARREETE - &K
B8 A AR A B E R EARISRELD
B e
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charge over certain fixed assets (see note 12(f)) and a first floating
charge over certain bank deposits (see note 15). At 31 March 2021,
the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000 (2020: $200,000,000).
Upon the maturity of the agreement, the subsidiary intends to extend

the facilities for at least three additional years.

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the subsidiary were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 March 2021 and 2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.

20 Bank Loan — Secured 20 IRITER — BIEH
At 31 March 2021, the bank loan was repayable as follows: RZZE-—F=A=+—8 " BITEFKNE
AR

2021 2020

$°000 $'000

Fr Tt

Within 1 year 1FER 200,000 —

After 1 year but within 2 years 1F1ZE2FR - 200,000

200,000 200,000
On 7 October 2013, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated R-ZFE—=F+A+H AX2THHBL
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with 7] — SEEEEE AR A R E—ERITE]
a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. On 30 August 3T — 174 300,000,000 7T HI L E 5% o
2016, the subsidiary entered into a supplemental agreement with the R-ZE—RENA=1TH - ZWBAFHEZ
bank for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019. R1T ETI—@ BRWE  BREHELER

In compliance with certain conditions, the facilities have been further =FE_T-NEF+ANB - EFEET

extended for two additional years to 8 October 2021. The banking &ET - EZ@QE@BEEZ%L—%FLEWiE
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed legal —E-—F+ANB c ZRTRERUA D

BEETEEEE(ZHMFE12(1) BE—
EEATE e kE TIRITER(28M15)
ME-—FHHRCHNEFERER - K
;;ffi A=+—H8 KEENE
X £200,000,0007L (Z 2 =T F ¢
200,000,0007T) ° & EIEAf% © M B A
ARERZMEZD=F -

ZHBRRMRITREBERITHEZINB A
AIME THRE MR RE X B BrZHEER
TR - WAKFEARTE —ERREK
I o Wz E A RR RS - BIERB
AR EECIRDNEESE - ARESTH
ERRROMaEERFE - N —FK
—E-TF=A=1+—H0 ZWBRRLE
BRAMEIRREE BRI -

—
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21 Government Lease Premiums Payable 21 BEEGHE
At 31 March 2021, the government lease premiums payable was RZZ-_—F=A=+—H  ENBMHE
repayable as follows: REFEANT -
2021 2020
$°000 $000
T T
Within 1 year (amount included in 1FA(BREEEMER KR
other payables and accruals) FEETERN) 73 69
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F&E2FRN 77 73
After 2 years but within 3 years 2F B B3FA 80 7
After 3 years but within 4 years 3FIREAFN 84 80
After 4 years but within 5 years AFBB5FA 89 84
After 5 years 5% 1% 1,319 1,408
1,649 1,722
1,722 1,791
Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a FENBT BN B RE R EESEUETEF
fixed rate of 5% (2020: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance. FIESE(=ZE T4 : 5F)i1HE o
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22 Capital and Reserves 22 BXRKf#E
(a8 Movements in components of equity a) ERAREBDOHE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBLRE N EAR D 8
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out THEBREHROEER - VEHREE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of BEEBER - AR ARENEFERE
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity & 51| 7 2 AR AK BT 9 ) S B 5 1B 41 i 4n
between the beginning and the end of the year are set out o
below:
The Company P/ N/N]
Share Retained
capital earnings Total
[} REBRF k]
$°000 $’000 $°000
=P = Frx
Balance at 1 April 2019 H2019F4 A1 B &R 121,830 403,807 525,637
Profit and total comprehensive  ZN4F [ F &
income for the year 2HERALEE = 185,337 185,337
Dividends approved in respect of B F—B A EHEER
the previous financial year B8 = (104,441) (104,441)
Dividends declared in respect of BRI EE S IRE
the current financial year R 8 — (99,694) (99,694)

Balance at 31 March 2020 and 72020%F3H31H &

1 April 2020 20204 A1 B W4&sk 121,830 385,009 506,839
Profit and total comprehensive  ZN4E[E 55 F %

income for the year FEWA LT - 68,909 68,909
Dividends approved in respect of B — BB E#/ER

the previous financial year iz B - (47,473) (47,473)
Dividends declared in respect of BB EE 5 IRAY

the current financial year f% B, - (47,473) (47,473)
Balance at 31 March 2021 202153431 B ER 121,830 358,972 480,802
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22 Capital and Reserves (continued) 22 EARNf#HE @)
(b) Share capital (b) B
2021 2020
Number of Number of
shares $°000 shares $'000
RHEEE Fr Bavrd= T
Issued and fully paid: BITRHBR
Shares &1 474,731,824 121,830 474,731,824 121,830
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies BIEEB(CATIEGIYE135E » AN
Ordinance, the shares of the Company have no nominal value. AR I EmE(E -
The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as DA AEEKERTET KA
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per 8 WA EARAAE FEEHE K
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with BHTE—2Z « RN AAROFEGBE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. E - FERMHEZEERSEZ -
(c) Nature and purpose of revaluation reserve ) EfMFENEENRAZR
The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation EEHBEREATFECERNEE
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised MEELEGLEMYESHES -
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into ISQUARE. ZBEEEZAFRES o HEE R
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related BEEBEYEE  FAREBOEGRSG
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to ehEGMEEEAMREET o G
retained earings. The reserve is non-distributable. A IKHY ©
(d) Distributability of reserves d) AP IRFEE
At 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available RZEZ—F=A=+—H ' RBE
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as EBCATED Y FE6METED
calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong G NG J&%E’M}ﬁ{%
Companies Ordinance, was $93,360,000 (2020: $100,267,000). ¥8 /493,360,000 7T ( — T 4F
After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed 100,267,0007T ) ° & %A AR & B
a final dividend of $0.08 per share (2020: $0.10 per share), RRERR  ZRENRKRBREEK
amounting to $37,979,000 (2020: $47,473,000) (note 10). This 0. 087g( ZT-FTF : HX0.107T) °
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the #37,979,000 L (ZE =ZF F :
reporting period. 47,473,000t ) (B EE1 O) o FHLERR B
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22 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2021

and 2020.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 March 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.8% (2020:
1.6%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
of $252,719,000 (2020: $283,254,000).

22

~
4

sl

=

\

—

e

=

)

ZIN

EXEICY)

BERERE
REEEREARN T E B IREA
£ B B RIAL h - TS H R
W% R3] T EEBOK FARTE RSB
BARNAERAREMEN T
B RS TRRS R E)R  AE
AEBEA AR -

REBTHRANEEEEALHE
TESRIE AT RE A R O 8 FOK T A FEL
= Mpk B Bk - BB EE AR
HRE B MRERGTE - WEE
ORISR M AEEARNERE - BHE
R FRITFF=RA=+—
BIEFE - AEEMZEEREERST

ANER B A R R B T B R A I
% FREHEFABBHEEES
MEBRRERHEERLRE - stk
mE AEBATELFEBELERAR
RITEREBEBR A GRA MBI RE
FIAHERRE R_T=Z—F
ZA=+—8  rxEENELREEL
KAE18%(—E-FF 1 1.6%) -
MRITIFRARIRSBBIRITERE
BHi#E 252,719,000 L ( ZE T F ¢
283,254,0007T) °

feln

i
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23 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
accounts receivable, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing

basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with sound
credit rating, for which the Group considers to have low credit

risk.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 18) as
collateral over accounts receivable to cover potential exposure
to credit risk. At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the expected
credit losses for accounts receivable were measured and loss

allowance was provided.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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23 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group

to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 14.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

R REER A EE @

(@)

EERE @)
AEBTEEAEERREH NS
R P EMEHERS - AL
SHEERR LR AEHRERE
BB EENREDME(DMBHES
) o N g2 [ fm 42 4 AT BAN 2
BEERMEOETRER o

ERASERERERMELREE
BBAENEMES(CIFE - SR
BffsE14 o

/)Ib ,afﬁﬂlz
REBNBEETE RERERMIEG
HWRBEERK  URBRETERN
ReE - BRER MRS EHE [
R RTT AR IR R AN EERE - U
MmEREAMBREANRDERFR

TRFVAKEZITESBAER
wEMREAL BRSSO BIHIR
B ZEFRRAORTARERE
(BEAEHMRLRNREHEL
EERERFIE(EZER) S ENH
BT RAEEAKE N AHM
53R

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

143



Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

23 Financial Risk Management and Fair

Values (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

23 BIigEERE N A AEEE)

(b) RBESEERE@

2021

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than less than More than
amount cash flows on demand 2years 5years 5years

ARARR 15/, BEE Bilos
BEE BeRESE  BERAN BARE BARSE BR5E
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr T Tr Tr Tr Tr
Other payables and acoruals ~ EA B R MEH B 38,341 38,361 38,361 - - -
Depostts received EhiTe 154,626 154,626 76,449 49,345 16,614 12218
Bank loan — secured BITER — AHEA 200,000 200,967 200,967 - - -

Government lease premiums  JERTIT(E
payable 1,649 2,383 - 159 4 1,747
394,616 396,337 315,777 49,504 17,091 13,965
2020

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flows on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

BRANR 1R Bl o
BEE ReRERE  RERNR ER VA {5155 HiEoF
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
e e e S S S
Other payables and accruals ~ EAtERF R EABR 32,076 30,007 32,007 = = =
Deposis received Sl ElE 176,500 176,500 47,153 59,541 54,588 15,218
Bank loan — secured BITER — FHER 200,000 208,667 5,700 202,967 - -

Government lease premiums  JERTTHE

payable 1,722 2,542 - 159 477 1,906
410498 420,006 85,150 262,667 55,065 17,124
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23 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.
The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings with significant interest rate risk

exposure at the end of the reporting period:

23 BIEREERALEE @

(©)

2021
Effective

interest rate

F =R E b
AEENNXEBREZRERITE
K FRRITEREREBAAR
REeEnENEER AEEEEREEE
SRR LT ()AL -

() FIEHR
TRAVRREHRLER R
SEMAAEEFEARNEE R
MBS FI R

2020
Effective

interest rate

BERAE $000  ERFIE $'000
% Fr % T
Fixed rate borrowings: TEEMEBR
Government lease premiums  FE{ BT (B
payable 5.00 1,722 5.00 1,791
Variable rate borrowings: ¥ {83k :
Bank loan — secured RITERR — HiEH 0.93 200,000 2.85 200,000
Total k) 201,722 201,791

Annual Report 2020-2021 3§

145



146

Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

23 Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

(©)

(d)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 30 (2020: 100) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss after
tax and decreased/increased the retained profits by
approximately $501,000 (2020: $1,670,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and retained profits)
that would arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s loss after tax (and retained
profits) is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2020.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as

substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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24 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $30,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $40,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately.
Prior to 1 July 2019, voluntary contributions to the plan vested at the
time the employees reached the retirement range, subject to certain
conditions. With effect from 1 July 2019, the voluntary contributions
to the plan vest on the scale based on the years of service of the
employees until full vesting after completing 10 years of service,
subject to certain conditions. The staff costs in respect of staff
employed by Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited
for building and property management of iISQUARE are reflected
in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2020: Nil) was utilised to
reduce the contributions payable for the year. No unutilised forfeited
contributions had yet to be applied by the Group at 31 March 2021
and 2020.

24

BEERAKER
REFERBEBCGEBIMEATES S EEGIE
RE - RRBES(ERGIDERNESR
SERBIMAE R EI([RERETE]) - %4
BT EIRABNZ A BN AT MK
RIRETE - BEBEBESHE - EXFEE
HBEIZIRIE B RBA B B5% AT 8 /EH #
;o BEE AMHEBA S LR A30,0007T ©
Brog il 5N - REE T IRBEBLES
FERE A B.30,0007THI5% 1E L B FEME AL
BUE=EEE A AE40,000t &R M
EEE AR HRABEBEERT -
RZZ—NF+A—HA - AFEELME
FEMEHER - EREE THRENERT - BME
BFERNFREERTBEEERN - B
—E-hFtA—B AFrEEHNERE
MER - EFEETRENERT - RigE
BMRGFHEmMENLAGEREERT &
ERRGEFHETFRFZHREERER
F - BiERITHEESERERATRBEES
MIEFRYEEEMEAREMNEIRAD
EAREERGEBRERAMEERARS R
BQ% °

RAFEN »+ WERZWBEOHZKAERER
EEEMNNOEICZ_TF  E) R-F
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25 Company-level Statement of Financial 25 A—E-_—F=H=+—H
Position at 31 March 2021 £ 2 B FE T B B 75 AK R 5%
2021 2020
Note $°000 $'000
BosE T Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EE&E
— Investment properties — B 296,310 315,440
Interest in subsidiaries e NG EoL > 2 176,303 175,769
472,613 491,209
Current assets RBEE
Accounts receivable, deposits and FEURERFR » 3] & RTEREK
prepayments 2,322 3,011
Current tax recoverable NERFEUS FT1SHR 581 129
Cash and cash equivalents BE MR EEY 55,010 55,410
57,913 58,550
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HEMENAKRIETER 7,595 7,698
Deposits received BUGETE 2,882 2,482
10,477 10,180
Net current assets REBEEFE 47,436 48,370
Total assets less current liabilites ~ZEEAERRE A& 520,049 539,579
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FEATHT B A R FRIB 37,963 31,504
Deferred tax liabilities BEBHIBEEE 1,284 1,236
39,247 32,740
NET ASSETS EEFE 480,802 506,839
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§REK iz
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 43 ¥ %l 7R )

25 Company-level Statement of Financial
Position at 31 March 2021 (continued)

25 R_ZE_-_—F=HF=+—H
ERAEEENM R T @)

2021 2020
Note $°000 $'000
5T Fr Tt

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRHE 22

Share capital R A 22(b) 121,830 121,830

Reserves HE 358,972 385,009

TOTAL EQUITY A 480,802 506,839

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

29 June 2021.

Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim

Director Director

26 Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party
At 31 March 2021, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity

does not produce financial statements available for public use.

EFeN B —F AT NBRAELRF

DE:
EBEZE EE

26 HESQRNRKEZEER

EXZeRR AEER_ZT_—F=A
=T+ ANEERBARRRRERTRES
ABEMKRZNORERRAR - WARDREHR
A HARNFHRE ©
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Notes to the Financial Staterments Bi§R KMzt
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( A3 ¥ %l 7R )

27 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 27 EEHEEBE_ZT_—F
Standards and Interpretations Issued E H =t+—HLEFEEHKRE
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended WMHERET ~ FERBIMNZER
31 March 2021 AR E
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA HEAPBKHRRZBEHBE St e
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard which are BEMTREE_ZE-_—F=A=1+—HIHF
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2021 and which have EHERED  INEBEATBHREEANZ
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments TEEETM—IBFEL] - FLERELBIET
include the following which may be relevant to the Group. HIrJgEER A BB RBMIER o

Effective for

accounting periods

beginning on or after

EUT g z2#

BRI ST EIRE £

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework 1 January 2022
(BBVIEREERDENGNEFT 2EBSAELE ] 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022
(BEBEGHERDEGIRMIEET E - BRERRE : 1ERER BRI FSIE] 20221 H1H

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — Cost of fulfilling a contract

(BB EFTERDEITENERT BRIEE K — BEITAKHIKAE ]

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle
(BB 53R 2RI )2018 5 220204 1A HiH) F /5 i

1 January 2022
20221 A1H

1 January 2022
20221 H1H

The adoption of these amendments is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Tian Teck Land Limited X &t ZEHR A &
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( 34 7 % 51 /R )

Results E
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T T T T Fr
Revenue 'ON 673,445 645,617 622,729 600,054 444,882
(Loss)/profit from operations & &Y E(L{E
after valuation changes in  ZEZEKE
investment properties (&18),BR (76,061) 276,376 233,968 (832,112)  (1,486,243)
Finance costs FIEZ59iN (3,374) (3,140) (4,855) (6,532) (3,047)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BR¥: AT (E518) 325 (79,435) 273,236 229,113 (838,644)  (1,489,290)
Income tax FriSit (90,721) (85,463) (81,214) (77,834) (50,955)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(EBR),BR (170,156) 187,773 147,899 (916,478)  (1,540,245)
Attributable to: THA L FEA :
— Equity shareholder of — NEEER R
the Company (90,612) 108,126 73,669  (460,124)  (777,623)
— Non-controlling interests — FEIERR AR B R A (79,544) 79,647 74,230 (456,354) (762,622)
(170,156) 187,773 147,809  (916,478) (1,540,245)
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Five Year Financial Summary hFEBEHE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (45 # %l 7R )

Assets and Liabilities EENEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Tt Fr FIt T Fx

Fixed assets FEE 14,449,891 14,200,817 13,925,053 12,607,693 10,798,767
Net current assets MENEEFE 345,610 355,882 363,384 365,760 257,555
14,795,501 14,556,699 14,288,437 12,973,453 11,056,322

Bank loan — secured IRITER — HiEH (200,000 (200,000) (200,000) (200,000) -

Government lease premiums  FE BT HI(E

payable (1,920) (1,857) (1,791) (1,722) (1,649)
Lease liabilities HEAE (46) (17) - - -
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIE A F (64,333) (72,190) (80,305) (89,368) (97,486)
NET ASSETS EEFE 14,529,202 14,282,635 14,006,341 12,682,363 10,957,187
Share capital [ 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830
Reserves & 7,334,597 7,224,347 7,084,387 6,420,128 5,547,559
7,456,427 7,346,177 7,206,217 6,541,958 5,669,389

Non-controlling interests FEIERR IR R 7,072,775 6,936,458 6,800,124 6,140,405 5,287,798
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 14,529,202 14,282,635 14,006,341 12,682,363 10,957,187

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T



i SQUARE

B B2 B 35
# 1
@ eport is printed on environmentally friendly paper

) £



	Cover

	Inside Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Properties
	Corporate Governance Report
	Corporate Social Responsibility Report
	Directors’
Report
	Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover




